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EVERYTHING WE DO IS
DRIVEN BY OUR PURPOSE

Our purpose is
to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders
by making a

difference to our
colleagues, our
customers and
suppliers, and
our communities.




DIPLOMA AT A GLANCE

Diploma PLC is an international group distributing specialised
products and services to a wide range of end segments in our
three Sectors of Controls, Seals and Life Sciences.

We are a well-diversified and resilient business and our
decentralised model means cur businesses are customer-
oriented, accountable and empowered to deliver.

OUR SECTORS (REVENUE)*

43% S

10% Ccrada

20% UK

17% Eturope

10% Australio/other




Our businesses design their individual value-added business models to closely meet the
requirerments of their customers, offering a blend of high-quality customer service, deep
technical expertise and innovative solutions. Local cultures are created through our decentralised
managerment structure but we recognise a set of values that exist throughout the Group and

unite us as Diploma,

VALUE-ADD IS AT THE WE HAVE A DECENTRALISED BUSINESS MODEL
HEART OF WHAT WE DO  WITH SHARED AND ALIGNED VALUES

A

Technical expertise

Service-led propositions

Innovative solutions

TRACK RECORD OF COMPOUNDING GROWTH

Adjustec ZPS herae)

FY07 FYD8 FYOD9 FY10 FYN FY12  FY13  fY14  FY15 FY 16

2007-18 CAGR:14%

FY 17

Determined to get better
every day

Striving for high standards

Doing the right thing

FY18 FY1® FY20 FY21 FY 22

2019-22 CAGR:19%

2
L

107.5

15-year EPS CAGR:15%

0% Diplorna PLC Annual Repert 2022

@OUDWIIAGG InI0di0 1ioday 21Baipay MBIAIBAQ

SIUBLIAIRLS [DIdUDUI]

DWIG U] JOYLO




HIGHLIGHTS

TLAR ERIED A0 WEPTIMBER 2022

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Organic growth Free cash flow conversion' Our Colleagues
We have worked hard to retain

great talent by engaging
O/ o colleagues across the Group. Cur
/ Engagement index is testament
O O to our businesses’ efforts.
Modo ca Sl

Mzl 37

Repb;:ced revenue mgerV\-/th‘ 7 Net debt/EBITDAT N Our Custormers
Responsive custormer service is

ore of the key ways that our
O businesses deliver value, we are
/ x proud that they are recognised
O ® by their customers.
Modio T Mamel w2 Jx

Adjuismted op'erctin-g mc:rg_ir\1 ROATCE' - Our Suppliers
During the year, our businesses

have engaged their key suppliers
O/ ()/ rneaningfully on human rights,
labour laws and the environment
® O ® O through our Supplier Code.

Wodnl 1T NModet High teens

Adjusted EPS growth' Dividend cover’ Our Communities
As a decentralised Group,

we want to support the local
O/ x communities and causes that
matter most to our businesses.
O ® We will comtinue to match our
W o' o

businesses’ fundraising in FY23.

Slrcetanlble cigit

FY 2022 FY 2021 % change




Caleaque Ergagement Index

“Since beginning a business
relationship with Hercules OEM
in 2003, we have seen a supplier
relationship grow into a true
partrership. Over the years the level
of service has continued to excel.”

Neptone, o forcaies OEM customer

o/8

Ko suppliers idertified

/9%

Iricrease in aonat’ors 1D wrority
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STAKEHOLDERS

KEY ELEMENTS OF OUR

LONG-TERM VALUE
CREATION STORY

Our business model

Cur strategy

Delivering value responsibiy
Sector reviews
Governance
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WHAT WE DO

CIFFERENTIATED VALUE-
ADDED SOLUTIONS

Cur value-cdd distribution model
underpins everything we do and
is the foundatior of the Group's
success. We supply products

and services crivical to customer
needs. Our service component
builds loyalty and resilience,
pricing power and margins.
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WHAT WE DO

SUSTAINABLE ORGANIC
GROWTH STRATEGY

Organic growth is our number
one pricrity. All of our businesses
have fantastic opportunities.
We are focused on business
revenue diversification to drive
organic growth, build scale anc
increase resitience. Operating

in fragmented markets, we also
seek to make complermentary
Qcquisitions to accelerate
organic grown.

R L

e
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SCALING OUR VAL
ADDED MODEL

v -
As our businesses grow aftif ¢
scale, they need to evolve their
operating model to continue to
deliver their value-add customer
proposition. Alongside this, we are
quietly evolving the structures,
capability and culture of our
decentralised Group to support
the businesses on their journey

to scale.

Dizlama PLC Arnucl Report 2022
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WHAT WE DO

DELIVERING VALUE
RESPONSIBLY

Delivering Value Responsibly,
our ESG framework, puts
ervironrmental and social
mpact at the forefremt of cur
stretegy and culture, We are
focused on the key areas in
which we can make o difference
to cur collengues, customers
and suppliers, communities,
anlhareholders.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DRIVEN BY OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES

OUR PURPOSE

Our businesses deliver value-added services

and solutions to a wide range of customers and
end segments. Our value-add component creates
customer loyalty and share of wallet; reputation
and market share growth; and pricing power

and margin.

r service

v

esponsive custo

}

Our purpose

is to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders by

making a difference
to our colleagues,
our customers and
suppliers, and our
communities.




B WE DELIVER
FOR OUR
STAKEHOLDERS

THE GROUP

As a customer-service organisation, our
decentralised approach is central to our success.
The Group has an important role to play in
supporting our businesses.

IR N
Build Diplorna iderlys
w},'
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Our businesses have strong cultures, but T e
share the same inherent values - they are
accountable, entrepreneurial and empowered
to deliver for their customers.

Very strong financial performance,
excellent strategic progress
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CEO'S REVIEW

| am delighted with our 2022 financial
performance and strategic progress. The
management team and all my Diploma
colleagues do a brilliant job — thank you.

Very strong results and excellent
strategic progress

A very strong ﬁnuncml perFormclnce

Organic growth

+19%

Very strong organic growth driven by
our revenue initiatives, positive demand
and pricing

Sustainable organic growth strategy:
revenue diversification driving growth,
building scale and increasing resilience

1. Positioning behlnd hugh growth end
segments - :

Renewable energy and mfrcstructure
mvestment R

Accelerctlng dlognostlcs spendmg

2. Geogrophic penetration cf core
developed econormies: - "

North American Aftermérke_t e



R ¥ -
and Europe at International Controls

- S T
y Australian Seals :

R L - Europe in
Life Sciences .« = oo o o
3. Product range extension to expand
addressabie markets: .= 1.1 -

voaot o C R&G Fluid Power
Group {R&G) represen‘ts a step chcmge
for Seqls

B et al - exciting
Adheswes busmess linein Controls.

HECAN RSt :ncrementcl
product odjocency mmatwes B

9]
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CEO'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

LJR Electronics {Controls): 2. » Portfolio discipline - Operational excellence: » .

S G LN L E0D Sl 2SN s TRl B E =
- R&G ¢
Sl
: termiee o ,;:: R
T 1, - Talent, Technology ond
B Scaling our value-added businesses Facility:
Pl T O malaT 3 3LSTLISI and the Group
- Accuscience (Life Sciences): Scaling our value-added businesses - Talent: oot ot et e
: PR e R R B 4 = st ellen 3 s HaCH oo

T A LR

- 1: Core Competencies °

Te

éhnélogy

lutions (Col

ﬁtrols): -

: - Facility - .r: :

Y

ercial disciplin

.- We have maintained high-teens
margins of

730




Scaling the Group R L T

Increasing resilience underpins our

outiook

Delivering Value Responsibly:

embedding into our commercial

strategy and culture We have grown EPS by

Y0

sustaining our impressive compounding
track record

[ oo ' -

oo
Excellent and consistent co oy
engagement score 5 ’ [

[ - St -
- Increasing the diversity of our Senior e i ~ .

Managernent Team (SMT) -2 -z < N )
e F=A S T 7;'[,-11—: . -

- Carbon emissions flat despite 15%
organic revenue growth .. ©

3

Johnny Thormnson
Chief Executive Officer

0

MILALDA
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STRATEGY

Building high-quality, scalable businesses
for sustainable organic growth

Compounding
1. Revenue diversification Financial
to drive organic growth Model

Organic
growth

Revenue
growth

Operating

- |
3. Scale our businesses to execute I
value-added customer proposition |

! Cash
conversion

5. Delivering Value Responsibly

22 Dimormo PLC Ammuas Recort 2022



1. Revenue diversification to drive

organic growth

Our sustainable growth strategy is focused on revenue
diversification to drive organic revenue growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating in a broad range of markets, all
of our businesses have fantastic opportunities. Our strategy is
focused on growing, diversifying and scaling in three ways:

O1

02

03

Positioning behind
high-growth end
segments

All of our businesses have
opportunities to tap into
high growth end segments,
many of which also have

a positive impact on the
environment or society.

Geographic
penetration of core
developed markets

We are relatively
underpenetrated in our
core developed markets
of North America, Europe
and Australia where there
is significant potential to
increase market share.

STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH TRACK RECORD:

Product range
extension to expand
addressable markets

We extend our product
ranges incrementally
within our businesses
and at portfolio level.

TARGET:
MID-SINGLE DIGIT

ORGANIC GROWTH

MIIAIBAQ
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

2. Targeted acquisitions to accelerate

organic growth

Focused portfolio development is key to the sustainability of our
growth strategy. As we grow, it is important that we focus on the
key, scalable business lines that represent our model and which
we are the right owners to grow and scale.

O

03

Acquisitions to
accelerate organic
growth

“Our approach to acquisitions
has become more structured
and strategic. This has
expanded our acquisition
pipeline, enabling us to take
advantage of a busy market
whilst also maintaining our
strong financial discipline.”

Steve Sargeant,
Corporate Development
Director

A disciplined
approach

Historic M&A spend (Em)

Success factors

Target ottributes

Strategically & financially disciplined

2018 e 2026C 200 2022

462 2
- 186.6
783
7.8 327
223 165 - 201 204 . eo



CASE STUDY

Windy City Wire:
accelerating organic growth for the
Group

Windy City Wire is a leading value-added distributor of
premium quality low voltage wire and cable.

MBIAIDAQD '

Acquired in October 2020 for £348m, the business
represented a material strategic step forward, accelerating
organic growth for the Group as a whole. Importantly,
Windy City Wire diversified Controls into the large,
attractive US industrials market and significantly increased
the Group's exposure to high growth end segments.
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:
ACQUISITIONS ACCELERATING ORGANIC GROWTH

Acquisition of Accuscience in Ireland:
positioning behind high growth end segments
and penetrating core developed economies.

R4

ACCUSCIENCE »

[ ]
LK

Acquisition of LJR Electronics in the US:
penetrating core developed econormies and product
range expansion to expand addressable markets.

LIR>

s MNTERDOAME TT S T IRGT

e e T IIIE DL TTE R DTN e
Characteristics:

PAse v mee o L
Value drivers:
Portfolio fit:

Value drivers:




CASE STUDY

Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group in
the UK: penetrating core developed
economies and product range extension

In April, we acquired R&G Fluid Power Group (R&0G), a high:
cuality aftermarket distribution business for our Seals Sector
inthe UK, for ca. £100m.

R&G is a value-added distributor of a diverse range of industrial,
hydraulic and pneurnatic products (including seals and
gaskets). lts value-added proposition is based on responsive
customer service, technical advice, breadth of stock and
product custormisation. Over time, the managerment *cam has
puilt a platform with extensive reach across the UK, including
through consolidating a number of regional distributors to
extend geographic and product reach.

Characteristics: Portfolio fit:
Lt valee added aftermarket distrib tor Sevlein:
Eamnresnyy UK posaets

- FlLw Poveor procuctrorqe

Value drivers:
- Eweelort arogaric growth track recors

ard dianiticart potertal thro

o3 arcddive
- artinued by A Luildt aotive sipeline
with on Lty 1o furt
corsalidote srnal rerianal cenpotic s
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

Our service component builds loyatty and resilience, pricing
power and margins. As our businesses grow, they evolve their
operating models to continue to deliver their value-add
proposition at scale — how a £10m revenue business delivers for
its customers is very different to a £100m revenue business.

We have created a framework for our businesses to plot their
journey to scale, including defining the right target operating
model of the future, developing the Core Competencies that
underpin it and the capability that will deliver it.

Evolve target operating model

Scaling our
value-added
businesses Core Competencies Capabilities

Core Co;peiéncies

Supply Chain Operational Commercial Route to
Managerent Excellence Value-Add Discipline Market




4. Evolve the Group to support
decentralised delivery

MBIAIBAQ

Our value-add distribution model underpins everything we do
and is the foundation of the Group’s success.

uoday 21Bajoiyg
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:
SCALING OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES AND THE GROUP

Australian Life Sciences: building a scalable Chicago June 2022: sharing best practice
platform for growth and building leadership networks




CASE STUDY

Talent

MIIAIRAD

“Investing in talent is critical to the
sustainability of our growth”

Jill Tennant
Group HR Director
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5. Delivering value responsibly

Our DVR programme is built on five,
material focus areas and positioning
ourselves for commmercial growth with
a positive impact on society and the
environment. Embracing DVR is key
to executing our strategy, fulfilling our
purpose and scaling and managing
our business sustainably.

VLTS,
AP IA I
it A4,

DIVERSITY, EQUITY
& INCLUSION

COLLEAGUE
ENGAGEMENT

HEALTH & SAFETY DELIVERING
VALUE RESPONSIBLY

Diolerna PLC Annucl Report 2022
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By aligning our businesses with our five
focus areas and positioning ourselves for
commercial growth with a positive impact
on society and the environment, we can
play a meaningful role in building a more
sustainable world.

Delivering for our People Delivering for the Environment  Delivering a Positive Impact
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Read about our performance in each of our focus areas 9

on pages 36-47. F

(4

5
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Our businesses have established DVR committees and Read more about our DVR metrics and targets on g
appointed persons responsible for performance and page 53. ':6".
3

progress ogainst targets.

Read about our DVR governance, responsible business
practices, and policies and procedures on pages 50-57.

WMgmmmestmcmreandpqmes *yto how
we deliver value responsibly. We have irhpiove »
. memcsnowembeddedandtargetsm drivey




DELIVERING VALUE R_E&ONSIBLY«._‘:

N\

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR ™,
OUR COLLEAGUES

E"\ T

,,:,’—l»"“’ﬁ , .
T e S+ i et |
% ': it

C AL aca e s e

34 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022




Gur decentrelised Group emplays ca. 3,000
celleagues across mulu;\c Businesszs,
g=egraphizs and commanities, This vear, we
welcomed oz, 500 new colleag.es through
acguisitionrs. The safety, wellbeing and
engag germent of those collecgues is our
primary concern and central to how we
Aeliver value.

Developing, attrecting and retaining talart
in an eguitakle and inclusive ervitsnrment
will support our journey 12 scale, arais ar
irportart differentiatar in a challenging
labowr market, Protecting our agile and
acoountable culture ss we grave anderping
our perfarmencs ard helps s attract

gk gquality acouisitions.

89%

of our colleagues are proud to work for
their business

Brilliant leadership

Our decentralsec rmodel means that cur
Serior Leadership Tearn (5LT) plays o kay
1ok in progressing the cullure ana streteny
of the Graup, os well as the performznce

of their usinesses and Sectors. Our SLT -
comaorised of our Dxecutive team, the
Managing Directors of our businesses and
key Groups roles — hios dermonstratect Brilliart
leacership during FY22, continuirg 1o look
after and support our colleagues, sarve our
custormers and shovws great agility and
resilience cespite geopolitical and economic
uncertainties.

35  Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Mental health and wellbeing

Our colleagues are the foundation of our M
business. They deliver value-add to our

customers, execute against our strategy
and are essential to our ongoing success.

ot that
25 Bave

s are mind’ul of the potential irm
enviranm=nts and proctic
= Durirg the yeon
~ontinued 1o hald wellbeing and resilicnce
workshops with busiresses crd proviaed
resalrces 1o rmark World Mertal Health Doy,
frwas celebirat=o across the

e rRirg

o our colls

= (rcup.

Jso acately awore of externsl
Covic-19 political instzbiity, the
wang s that moy further
rapact car colleagues’ wellbeing ard
nentclbealth, We Fave veorked hard to
soore =xsting colleagues, as well as
that oin the Group throw
sruisiticon, and are please
P collaaques fel that their jo
according to our engadgenent §

In June this year, we brought together

members of the SLT in Chicago to
celebrate their hard work and discuss
our strategy. This was the 5LT's first
tirne meeting in person since the
pandemic and a key opportunity to
strengthen networks, build our culture
and integrate new senior feaders

oﬁc
:H existling Dusinesses, '-(4 mﬂor‘
ﬁy““lﬁ’] i= aluo

busineanes where oolleagues bave 5uﬁ‘cr©d
] berecvemem or ragic ewent,

Building engaging and fulfilling careers
W continug to evalve our calture anc
SLDROE = engUgemnert across the
Group, We accudire new DL s every
year and give careful consiceration to how
wee onbacrd celleagues that oin us the
acquisition.

LaSinesse

Group intermal communication is o povesr fal
tool for us - cur CEO updates our colleojues
directly through auarterly vid=os ancd
infarrmation is shared across businesses andd
Sectors through our internal newsletter. This
year we irtroduced o learning merogernent
systerm, which = currently beirg rallzd out
across the Group.

Developrment of talent supperts our
strateqy, deepers engagoment anc is
irTTi'_)f_',[";]\'ﬂ_ (Wl EVETY Y \f‘\_‘ Of sl l“ (‘r\e 35
Many of cur cclleagues undergo on the-ob
training, whether 1hre apprenticeships
ar externol certification. Through: our DWR
programeme. we have storted 1o devzlop
networks thiet facilitate kne e sharing
coross certain functions suck as Hp( Ith &
Safety, Supply Chain Management, crd HR.

moday 216a1nag




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Engaging our Colleagues

Engaged colleagues perform better. Our

b Fioe Aoy - collecgues colleagues have great technical expertise
and in-depth knowledge of their products
2022 Highlights and markets. In a challenging labour market,
o oo o cgerment Indx engagement helps us to hold onto that
- 70% of Grou lleagu i H
o aiee e talent, knowledge and expertise.

management system

86%

response rate

/9%

engagement index

KP1

Engagement Index

{an externally benchmarked score
from our anrual engagement survey)

Target
Maintain an engagement index
of 70%+

Ongoing Facus

- Build out our learning management
system

- Continued focus on wellbeing
and mental health

- HR network to support best

practice . .
- Continued lecdership development It's really important to us that

we continue to prioritise and
engage our colleagues across
the Group. Earlier this year we
held our second engagement
survey. The engagement index
was 79% with over 2000
colleagues taking part.”

Jill Tennant,
Group HR Director




75%+

all of our businesses achieved an
engagement index within a range
of 75-85%

Leadership style

75% 0%

2022 75
2021 73

Q0%

of our colleagues believe that their
work is meaningful, according to our
engagement survey

Learning and development

70% 42
2022 70
2021 [oe)

88%

of our colleagues believe that their
manager empowers them, according
to our engagement survey

Wellbeing
79% %

2022 79
2021 78

CASE STUDY
M Seals UK Employee
Working Group
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“I like that | can act on behalf
of my colleagues to voice their
concerns or issues. | also like
that we develop a plan or
response to each issue right
there in the meeting so it gets
sorted straightaway. It's a
great way to communicate as
all the branches of the business
are there together at the
meeting - whether it's a
finance issue, a management
issue, or a warehouse issue.”

Sati Sing,

Warehouse Opergtive and
member of the Employee
Working Group at M Seals UK



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Ensuring Health & Safety

Keeping our colleagues healthy, safe and

Qur visions that no one is harmed well is a prerequisite to doing business.

We have a duty of care to any person who
2022 Highlights is working remotely, working at, or visiting
" ot Setecy cotite a Diploma business.

- More robust reporting

- Reduced severity rate

- Improvement in potentict
hazard reporting L e E e i T s

- Improved governance at business R . S S S
and Sector level L e ’ R

106  ooi e

LT rate

449,

reduction in severity rate

Action during 2022

KPI

Lost tirme incident (LTI} Rate
{number of lost time incidents per
1,000 employees)

FY23 Target L — . .
5% year-on-year reduction in LTl rote T

Ongoing Focus Tt e O
- Build positive mental health B LI R S b
and wellbeing U e O
- Continuous improvement and focus Tl
on Health & Safety culture of colleagues feel that Health &
- Ensure process in place to reduce Safety is taken seriously in their
risks id_entiﬁed by potential hazard business, according to our Colleague
reporting Engagement Survey




o CASE 5TUDY
S 00 o .. North American
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Group performance stats
LT rate

Severity rate

Potential hazards




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Promoting Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

Our vision is to build a diverse
waorkforce, where all of our colieagues
feel able to bring their full selves to
work and fulfi their potential.

2022 Highlights

- New Group Diversity, Equity
& inclusion Policy

- Unconscious bias workshops

- Training for Senior Leadership
Tearn on inclusive leadership

- Ethnicity reporting

27%

of the Senior Management Team
are women

KPI
% of wormen on the Senior
Management Tearm

FY30 Target
Wormnen represent 40%+ of Senior
Management Team

Ongoing Focus

- Succession planning

~ Implementing the Diversity, Equity
and Inclusion Policy across the Group

- Further learning and knowledge
sharing

We remain committed to better
representation across our Group and
businesses, particularly in management
and leadership positions.

TelrTor Gender diversity (as at 30 September)

~gsle  Fernale Tora

Ethnic diversity {as at 30 September)

Prefer

Mo - Ethnic ~atic
ooty minerity s Toma
oo ’ ¢ z -
O/ o =13

of external hires into the . R - E . R
Senior Management Team during the Cl e e e
year were women G e B

% of women on SMT

2022 27%
2021 24%



Diversity of our Senior Management Team

Gender diversity Ethnic diversity
Women 27% Ethnic minority  10%

Prefer not to soy  15%

Gender diversity across the Group

Board All employees

Women 43% Women 31%

CASE STUDY
International
Women's Day

w
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International Women's day was
celebrated by businessas across the Group
on 8th March 2022,

Businesses brought their teams together

at funches, discussion groups and through
fundraising events to discuss bias and the
challenges foced by women in the workplace.

All colleagues were also ghven the
opportunity to attend a #BreakTheBias
warkshop, which highlighted examples of
unconscious bias and the role that we can
all play in tackling it ot work,



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIELY
CONMTINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
THE ENVIRONMENT




We are a Group whose businesses, supply
chain and end users stretch across the globe.
As a distributor, our operational emissions are
relatively modest, and the vast majority of
our emissions will sit in Scope 3.

Calculation of cur Scepe 3 ermissions s
complicated undertaking in ¢ decentralised
Groug, such as curs, Wi are working to do
this aheod of subbmitting < net zerc torget
to the Science Baosed Torgets Initiative (SBT7)
during FY23.

The clirnate crisis is urgent and giobeal, we
recognise the impact of cur wider foctprint
and the rarrowing window of opportunity
to make a positive contribation in tackling
this crizis. Beyond the rmaral obligation that
wi feel we aso see the contribution 1o the
leng-term valus creation and growth of cur

businenses.

43 Diplerma PLC Annual Report 2022

Our colleagues are increasingly passionate
about climats charsge ana expact tie Group
to drive progress and support thelr iritiatives,
There is also the opportunity 1o deliver

value to our custorners by offering more
sustainable praducts and solutions, buildins
cur knowledge and expertise, and weorking
tobe a more carbon-stficient business that
con sLpport their net cera goals,

Cor positive Impact revenee iritiotives help

non curselves for comrmercial
growethw’th o positive impact on society
and the cnviconrmcnt.,

yioday a16a3biysg




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

QOuir vigion is for all of our key suppliers
to be compliant with our Supplier Code.

2022 Highlights

- Active engagernent with our
suppliers on the environment

- Key suppliers identified and the
process has started to align with
our Supplier Code

59%

of our identified key suppliers are
aligned with our Supplier Code

KPI
% of identified key suppliers cligned
with Supplier Code

FY30 Target
80% of key suppliers are aligned with
our Supplier Code

Ongoing Focus

- Continue to ensure alignment of
key suppliers with Supplier Code

- Align our Supply Chain Policy and
processes with our net zero targets

- Build our understonding of supplier
emissions

Management of our supply chain is key

to our broader social and environmental
impact as a Group, and a key part of our
strategy and commercial proposition. Our
focus is to work with our suppliers to tackle
climate change and reduce our own impact
through more sustainable packaging,
logistics and products.

Percentage of identified key suppliers
aligned with our Supplier Code

Key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code 59%




Tackling Emissions and Waste

To be net zero acress our operations
by 2040 and net zero across our value
chain by 2050 at the latest.

2022 Highlights

- Emissions flat, excluding the impact
of new acquisitions during the year,
despite strong organic growth

- Waste measured for the first time

- Business-driven initiatives

Total Scope 1 and 2 emissions

Tonnes CO,e

Emissions KPI

% recluction of Scope 1 and 2
emissions (tonnes CO,e) against FY22
baseline (10,615 tonnes COe)

Waste KPI
% of total waste to landfill

FY30 Emissions Target
50% reduction of Scope
1& 2 emissions on FY22 baseline

FY30 Waste Target
Less than 15% waste to landfill

Ongoing Focus

- Set 5BTi net zero target

- Build internal knowledge of
Scopes 1, 2&3

- Divert waste from landfill

- Setout o clear roadmap to
our 2030 targets

We are committed to net zero emissions
across our value chain by 2050 at the latest.
We have set an interim 50% reduction target
for our own operations by FY30. We are
currently calculating our Scope 3 and will
submit our net zero targets for verification
by the SBTi in FY23.
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FY22 FY21 TG

- T S S R
" S D 7,359 .0 ik
T e oo 10,615 ~ 2/ 2@

Purchased electricity kWh

14,033,971

Tonnes CO.e per £1m revenue

10.5

2022 10.5 2022 14,033,971
2021 12.5 2021 13,947147
2020 8.0 2020 7,762,447

Gross emissions

10,615

2022 10,615
202 2,825
2020 4,331



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

CASE STUDY

Packaging

Packaging initiatives are being put in place
across the Group. For many businesses, the
focus has been on creating @ more circular
packaging systern.

Some businesses have invested in shredding
machines in order to reuse incoming
cardboard packaging as packing materiai
for outgeing orders. Other businesses have
focused on removing non-recyclable
elements ‘rom their packoging by replacing
plastic tape with paper tape - removing
more than a tonne of plastic for their
customers. Anather scherne has completely
rermoved branding from all packaging. By
waorking closely with our suppliers to have
products delivered in plain, cardboard
boxes, product packaging can be reused by
our businesses and customers.

All of these initiatives support our ambition
to reduce our waste-te-landfill and overal
waste. [t also supports cur customers in
achieving their own net zero and waste
reduction initiatives.




CASE STUDY

Facility upgrades

During FY22, our European Life Sciences business,
Simonsen & Weel, moved into a new location that
benetfits from more efficient heating and coofing,
solar panels, state-of-the-art insulation and electric
vehicle charging. The business also cecided to
improve biodiversity in the surrounding area by
sowing wildflower meadows on its surrounding land.

moday 216aiong
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DELIVERS
IMPACT
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Our businesses deliver positive impact
through products and services that benefit
our society or environment. Growth initiatives
in these areas offer exciting commercial
opportunities and support our purpose.

Positive irmpact revenve is generated across
all businesses from the sale of products,
services and solations that beretit our
saciety or environrment and support the
transition to a more sustainakle future,
Growth iritiatives in those arcas offer o key
opportdnity to positively impact cur
stakebolcers,

There are huge opportunities to be found

in the scale of transtormation recuired (o

create a miore sustainaktle, low-carbon

econcrmy, soch s the adbesives A1 [Wialtel
ehicle arsermnbly or the secls solz

NG rence bk energy generation,

Jur busirasses also supply products that
support healthy and safe communities,
such as the highly-stranded silicane cable,
supplied by our Controls Sector, that is used
in defibrilators and BECG electrodes.

4% Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

O Life Sciences businzssos offor diagnostic
solations that makes it quicker ard easier 1o
icdentify [ife-threatening diseases, imcluding
cutting-adge technalogy that allews for
eurty detection of disedses in rowborns, and
horne tasting kits for remate communities

scentalised rnodal gives us the ozl

talize on opporturities in thos

t grovving end segrments as we work
wilh our suppliers and their industries to
innovote new, speciclised products and

salutionrs

Ovur positive impact revenue streams arc
an importart componant of sur organic
growth strategy and each Sector hos
growth clans in slace,

1i0day s1Bainig




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS
RESPONSIBLY
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Our Group purpose is to consistently deliver
value and reward our stakeholders by making
a positive difference to our colleagues, our
customers and suppliers, and our
communities. We are committed to fulfilling
our purpose in a way that is environmentally,
socially and ethically responsible.

DVR governance

Our DVR governances structure is lean and
CThe Group

b= responaikility for provizing dicection

ard sappsrt, ard the Board has Lliimate

ovirsignt and responsibility for DR ocross

the Group

Operatioral exeoution tekes place in our

bes mecas, ol L LT L nrery

Managing Directors are res sibale far OVR
performe

VR focus oreas i fime
weith rrateriality 1o their baciness, Targets
are et al Graap anc Sector icvel anc the

cative tearn, which includas the Group
CLO and Secter CEOs, in responsitle “or

respensibil ty.

Iy lire with oo 2071 pledoe, DVR R are now
inteqgrat=d into our regular moncyenent
reporting, incloding bicnnua cpdates on
our ermissions. Our businesses report their
ernissions data quartey 1o the Groap,
where it is reviewea by the worior Airance
team and managed for irmprovemant Ly
the Seclor leaaeshin e,

assescing cirnate-related risk
spoorturitizs. This i

Sectors, Groap Finaran, DVR steernng
cormirittes and *he Boara,
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The roke of the DVR Steeriey Cormmittes,
which is chairea by the Group CEC, is to
cutline Group strategy against the CVE
frarmewaark, set Group initiatives and

targets, support the Sectors and businessesd,

and monitor anc communicatc progress.,
The challerge of a decentralised business
car be to ensura alignment with Group
ohrectives and drve meaningiul progress.
Commurication is key to the effectivenass
of VR management across the Group and
DVR feotures heavily in regular internal and
SLT commiunications.

Our senior Leadership Tearn {5LT), which
includes business MDs, is upaoted quarterly
orn CVR during regular SLT updeates from the
CED. They also attend in depth sessions
with members of the DVR Steering
Comenittee w0 review performances ard
CAR governonce, recoive updotes on DVR
strateqy and policy changes, ana share
their seccesses ana bast practics.

The Execitive tearr s updated on DVE
along with the 5l T but also hald rmore
detailed seesions bianrually as part of the
Execitive Meetings. Sector CEOs meet
Bicnrually with the DVR Steering
Cornrmittee for o DVR Governance mesetirg
1o discuss DVR strateqy, goverronae,
climateelcted risks and opportunities,
and reviews pragress and initiatives.

The Board halds ar annual DYR session to
review DVR strategy, objoctives and
progress. Ciirrate-related risk management
is irtegratew inte Group risk munagement.

woday 216310418




NG VATLLD RESPONSIELY

Our DVR governance structure

Diploma PLC
Board &
Group CEO

DVR strategy &
framework J

Group DVR
governance

DVR
Strategy
Committee

Reporting & Executive
performance team

Sharing resources,
tocls, best practice
& support

\J

Development of

DVR networks .
Business

<~ MDs&DWR
Committees

Oversight of DVR strategy &
performance

Oversight of climate-related
risks & opportunities

T

Sector & Group performance
against targets

Sector & business
governance and reporting

ldentification &
managerent of Group &
Sector climate-related risks

T

DVR performance and
initiatives

Identification and
management of climate-
related risks




Our metric

and targets

5
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DELIVERING VALUE RESFONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (

TCFD): our response
S o o T e 3tE DoT

GOVERNANCE

Board Oversight

Management’s role
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Our policies and procedures
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING
OUR
PROGRESS

FINANCIAL KPis

We measure our performance against

a number of financial and non-financial
metrics which reflect how we are delivering
against our strategic objectives (as set out

on pages 22-33), our financial model (see page
22) and our ESG framework (see pages 34-57).

Organic revenue growth

Organic revenue growth is the Group's
number one priority. We focus on
products and solutions which are
critical 1o custoners’ needs, giving
resifience to revenues. We target
mid-single digit organic growth

' 19 20 a2
0,
6% |
Five-year average .
e
+

h

Reported revenue growth

We aim to deliver sustoinable double-
digit growtn through @ combination
of organic growtn and high-guaiity,
value-enhancing acquisitions which
accelerate our organic growth.

LT 20 21 2

r
[
w

N1

18%

Five-year compeound

Adjusted operating margin

Our differentioted vaiue-added
solutions and custormer-focused
approach drive custormer loyalty

and crecte pricing power, supporting
sustainocle and attroctive margins.,
We target g margin of 17%+

179%

Five-year average

¥ 20 20
.
| i

Adjusted EPS

EPS growth is a rmeasure of how
successful wee have been in growing
organical'y and throeugh acguisit'on,
including capital allocation and tax
considerations We target dout'e-digit
EPS growth.

17%

Five-year compound

* *
b R

Free cash flow conversion

A strong bolance shest ond cash flow
“und our growih strategy ord provide
healthy, grow'ng dividends. We target
free casn Howe convers'on of 0%+

19 20 2 22

0
~

96%

Five-year average

18

ROATCE

his mreascres mow s occesstul we gre ar

Jenerating returns oF the m/estments we

mare. We ta-get ROATCE in the nigh teens

S

EL T 22

°
<+ §
S S

20.2%

Five-year average
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NON-FINANCIAL KPls

QUR COLLEAGUES

Engagement index
An externally benchmarked score from our
annual engagement survey

TARGET
muintclin; O /O I
k]l 2

g

~

Lost time incident (LTI} rate % women on the Senior Management
Number of LTls per 1,000 employees Team (SMT)
TARGET FY30 TARGET

5% year-on-year reduction OC)/
40%+

20 2 .22 2 22

10.8
I

QUR ENVIRONMENT

% key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code’

FY30 TARGET

80%

of key suppliers aligned with
Supplier Code by FY30

% of total waste to landfill % reduction of Scope 1& 2 emissions
against FY22 baseline

FY30 TARGET FY30 TARGET
waste to landfill reduction in Scope 1&2
emissions
2622 2022 {ascime vear)
éO /C) 1 O 61 5tonnes COe

ove =3q4=q”‘&:r eq. BOT o
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SECTOR REVIEW

CONTROLS
SECTOR
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The Controls Sector
businesses supply
specialised wiring,
cable, connectors,
fasteners, control
devices and adhesives
for a range of
technically demanding

applications.

Windy City Wire (WCW): 50%
Acizading value-addead
distribwator of premiurm Juaclity
I voltage cablz ara wirs.
WA s camprenensive cable
monagenmiert systems cernerate
sigrifoant tine and cost
SaVINgs Tor customsres,

Wire & Cable (UK): 9%
Specialst ard Hexible cablz

Aeatior, terrination arnd
mcrwcgemer.t procucts, and
cable managament solutions
across ¢ brogd base of
castomers in Eurape.

Interconnect: 22%

Harmess componenrt

specialist comnectorns |
technicalty dermonding
cppfications across multiple
incustries in furaps and the US.
Cur busnesses supply o range
of products ard value-ocd
services and products including
protective sleeving, cut-1o-
length tubing, kitting, connector
assermbly and prototype
quantities of customized
rrditi-core cables.

Specialty Fasteners: 10%

S J\w preniium-quality
=15 g thier with

nical sup o, quolity

caticn and other
cdded services for

CLSTIMOTS | # Aerospacs,

Meanrsport, Defoncs o

general Ingystrial. Wa

sopport key o

UM ST

replenishrment sc

Fluid Controls: 6%

Fluid contrellers, comipressars,

Tpersture and

fsressu SUrEMEnt gavices

dlised liguid dispersin
Cormponents primnarily for
LsTorners in the UK Food &
Bevernges sectorn

Adhesives: 3%

Specialty silicones, cdhesives
and zeatarts together with
technical sunpart and ather
value-odeoed services.
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Revenue by segment’

Windy City Wire
Imtereoprect
Specialty Fasteners
Mire & Conle (UL
Fluid Contro

Acheasives

Revenue by geography’

.
&

58% North Arneric:
23% LK
16% Continental turops

3% Other

Reported revenue (£m)
[compound growth over Hve years)

+30% p.a.

ya

492.8

MITAIIAD

2162310435
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“Our International Controls
businesses have shown
tremendous energy in
building momentum - it's
been great to see their hard
work pay off this past year.”

David Goode
Sector CEQ, Controls

“It's been another great year
for Windy City Wire thanks
to our great proposition,
winning culture and ability
to deliver for the customer.”

Rich Galgano
CEO, Windy City Wire

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022

FY 2021 Change in the year

Revenue

£492.8m

£343.3m +44%

Organic revenue
growth

+24%

+16%

Adjusted operoting
profit

£105.8m

£72.4m +46%

Adjusted operating
margin

21.5%

211% +40bps

- Share gains in high growth end markets
and compelling custormer proposition
driving an excetlent WCW performance:
organic revenue growth 32%, including
double-digit volume growth

- International Controls organic growth
18%, with accelerating growth in
attractive end segments while also
broadening US and Eurcpean exposure

- Product extension: excellent organic
growth in our new Adhesives business line,
with a bolt-on acquisition to add scale
and diversify end markets

Sector financial performance

N

T oo T Wire & Cable

s D A

Interconnect ~=1-- 3t ITLii iU

Specialty Fasteners o~ . —=u




§tra§e9i§ RrOKQI‘Ief.S‘ N 7 CASE STUDY
R High growth end
markets

Fluid Con

trols -2

3 roos

Lt e

- Adhesiv

Coa e e e

es

Qur Adhesives business delivered »20%
organic growth, helped by exposure to high
growth end markets. Our products and
solutions have many applications, including
in electranic control units for electric and
autonomous vehicles and for waterproofing
connections as part of a large scaie fibre
optic roll-out in the UK by a major
telecommunications company.

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/
controls

wWindy Ci

ty Wire o]

0
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The Seals Sector
businesses supply a
range of seals, gaskets,
cylinders, components
and kits used in heavy
mobile machinery and
a diverse range of fluid
power products with
Aftermarket, OEM

and MRO applications.

International Seals: 47%
Our Seals businesses in Lurope
and Australic sepply scals,
gas<ets, pummps onc relatec
accessorics, custorn moulded
and rmachimed parts, hydraulic
aylinder conponerts, and o
diverse rarge of Huid power
products e Afterrmarket, OEW
ar«d MRO customers

North American
Aftermarket: 23%

Supplics a variety of seals,
generally oma next day basis,
for o brocd roge of mobile
machinery used in heavy
Construction, Mining and
Agroulture, Products ore sed

in repair cng maointenance atter

equipment has completed its
initich warranty perod or beer
sold on the pre wsed market
Customers are rmainly repair
shops, engine ond trapamission
retuilders ond cther heavy
equipment pdrts distributors,

US Industrial OEM: 18%
Supplizs sedls, goskete, O rings
and custom maulded and
machined parts. The business
works closely with customers to
specily the mest appropriote
seql design, material cnd
marnufacturer {or the
application: provides technice)
swpport during product
Jeveloomert; and delivars the
legistics capasiitias to support,
smmall 1o medium sized
production runs.,

US Maintenance, Repair &
Overhaul (MRO): 12%
O ur MRO business, WP
lechnalegics (VSF), supplies
high-guality gaskets and fuid
sealing praducts to oritical

i wat-of-folure

ations. e business works

direrntly with customers 1o
mprove sealing performanae,
providing expertise, product
recormmendations and training
VP sells primarity 10
transportetion, chemical
processing, power and rmiaring
customers.

Diplomg PLC Anrual Report 2022

Revenue by segment’

47% Irternational Seals
23% NA Aflermarket
18% U Industrial ObM
12% JSMRO

Revenue by geography’

@ 50% North America
37% UK &Europe
13% International

Reported revenue {£mj
(compound growih over five vears)

+11% p.a

22
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“The team has been the
standout highlight of my
first year - they've shown
great leadership in driving
growth in a tough supply
chain environment. I'd like
to thank them all for their
commitment.”

Ted Messmer
Sector CEQ, North American Seals

#2022 was a transformational
year for International Seals:
we've welcomed around 400
new colleagues from R&G
and other businesses and
enter the year ahead better
positioned than ever.”

Alessandro Lala
Sector CEQ, International Seals

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022

FY 2021 Change in the year

Revenue

£331.4m
+14%

Organic revenue
growth

£26537m  +26%

+/%

Adjusted operating
profit

£62.6m

£46.5m +35%

Adjusted operating
margin

18.9%

17.6% +130bps

- Geographic penetration: Louisville giving

access 1o previously untapped Western
and Midwestern states, driving

accelerated market share gains in North

American Aftermarket

- Diversification in growth end segments:
International Seals organic growth 1%
with broad-based growth against a
strong comparator

- Product extension: strategic acquisition of

R&G in April to build scale in the UK and

broaden the Seais product portfalio into
pneumatics, expanding addressable
rmarkets

- Building scaie: acquisition of ACT,
a supplier of innovative anti-corrasion
products and selutions, adds further scale
to the high guality piatform for growth
we have built in Australia over the iast
three years

Sector fina

nce

ncial performa

North American Seals =7 - -1 -~

North Amer-icon-Afterma;-l;ét- ;:7;' v
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§'§rat§qi$ progress CASE STUDY

e IR : Product range
extension delivering
organic growth

.

MBIALGA

yioday o1baypayg

New proprietary products helped to drive
organic growth of >20% in US MRO. The
business's Service Equiprment Rebuild Kits
(SERK™) provide customers with technical
expertise and a kitting selution that saves
time and money, and reduces the total cost
of ownership. Sales of the kits tripled in
FY22, attracting new custormers and driving
market share gains.

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/seals/
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SECTOR REVIEW

LIFE SCIENCES
SECTOR
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The Life Sciences

Sector businesses

supply a range of
equipment, consumables,
instrumentation and
related services to the
Healthcare industry.

Canada: 43% Europe: 36%

Duar market lecding Caradian Qur frist & UK busingces
buas nesses supply clinicat distributes leading-ea qe
dingnostics instrurnentation techrologies, focused

and pradusts, and specialty sp ,,\'rjli\t lab um‘mry 4io gnnstics

surgical Zevices togetiar with an:i speciclty medical devices

related consurmables and G Scandinayvian businesses

services to public hospitals, s.pply devices, equipment

private clinics and pathology 2nd patient monitoring

laboratories. technclogies used in operating
theatres as well o5 medically

Australasia: 21% supervised nutrition,

Alcading supplier of

instrumentation ar

cansumables 1o the pathelogy,

scientific research ard medical

segrments. Cperating in

Austrelio and Mew Zealand, the

businezses aloc supply spaciclizt

surgical equipment and

consumables used in hosoital

operating rooms.
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Revenue by segment’

36% Testing & iagnostics
24% Surgical

18% (Gostroirtest nal
22% (ther healthoare

Revenue by geography'

43% Conaca
36% Lurops
21%  Australio

Reported revenue (£m)
(compound growth over Hve years)

+8% p.q.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022 FY 2021 Change in the year

Reverue £188.6m £1804m  +5%

Organic revenue (4)% +‘| 4%

growth

Adjiedoperstog £410m  £432m  (5)%

profit

Adjusted operating 91 79, 239%% (220) b S

. . . margin
“Our Life Sciences businesses S
have done a qgreat jOb of - Organic revenue growth was 2% - Strategic acquisition of Accuscience:
developing our product excluding lost year's Covid-related increases exposure to high growth testing,
pipe“ne’ focusing on revenues and was -moderoted by hospltcl\ d\ogrlﬁostlcs and med\cc\ segments;
! K . staffing shortages; returned to organic continues the build out of our Eurepean
Innovative PrOdUCtS that will growth in Q4 as expected footprint
ir‘nprove pq-tient cutcomes - Strong diagnostics and endoscopy - Disciplined portfolio management:
and position us in hlgh performance - . disposal of al-envirosciences
- Sector well-positioned for growth: exposed
growth areas. Our prospects to rising diagnostics spend and significant

are exciting." elective surgical backiogs

Dan Brown
Sector CEQ, Life Sciences

Secter financiol performance It Tt

testing and diagnostics  “ - io




O

Strategic progress ST T e e CASE STUDY
LT o N ~ Innovative products
. driving growth

.

MBIAIDA
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A key highlight for the year was Life
Sciences' success with Fuji CAD EYE™,

an innovative endoscope utilising Al
technology. Our team partnered with Fuji to
commercialise this cutting edge product,
which has been a huge success and an
important contributor to our strong
perfermance in endoscopy in the year.

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/
lifesciences/
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires the Directors to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit

of the members as a whole, having regard
to the interests of stakeholders in their
decision-making.

Stakeholder engagemen

e e

How stakeholder interests have
influenced decision-making

Set oot beiow are some examples of
gecisors made oy the Board inthe vear,

Dividend
2ne of the prns pal ceciniors considered
v the Boord over the hae pee~

welatics 1o —ing voiue to charencigers.
rrrakng it egarding tne 2021
fra divide




OUR COLLEAGUES OUR BUSINESSES OUR CUSTOMERS
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT
CONTINUED

OUR SUPPLY CHAIN

YVhy we enQTgé

.

How we engage

OUR INVESTORS

Loger e e
How the Board engages

o e me

e TTEnRT T LT

ENVIRONMENT
AND COMMUNITIES

W’{y we engage T

Howween'ga-ée'
e e g

- "

How the Board engages

Outcomes/action taken
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CASE STUDY

Relocation of Abacus dx and
Big Green Surgical

This year, two of cur Australian Life Sciences
businesses successfully integrated thelr operations
at a shared facility. The objective was to create
better operational efficiency and improve service
to customers and suppliers. Careful consiceration
was given to colleague wellbeing, engagernent
and career progression, including through internal
communication, colleague consultation, and
openly addressing any concerns raised. The

move has improved employee engagement

and development, as well as Health & Safety.
The new facility also benefits from LED lighting,
better insulation and more efficient heating and
cooling systems.

A number of our businesses have been
recognised by their customers, suppliers
and colleagues this year.

Feefo Trusted Service Award
at Shoal Group OWO r

Techsil won the Al

Distributor Awards for the fourth
year running from a major
supplier

Silver EcoVadis award at VSP
Technologies %

customer satisfaction at M Seals

M Seais UK shortlisted in Filcon Electronics awarded best
Developing Future Talent 2021 European Distributor by a
Category for Make UK major supplier

75 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022
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Q&A WITH OUR NEW CFO

Q

What are your priorities for
the year ahead?

“Qur strong
performance and
strategic progress
in such challenging

circumstances are

testament to our i -
| outstanding Gl enwelonioea
| colleagues.” T LI EET

Chris Davies i o o

CFO : -




FINANCIAL REVIEW

- e SN : Attractive, high teens margins Effective tax rate breadly unchanged
=t o oo T ot (See table 2) B i LR R TR I

i [AS

Higher financing costs

ot I =Lt Tl — e L =t |

1oday 216a1ong

Double-digit organic growth
k. At - b

26% growth in adjusted EPS
and total dividen
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

= oo e

Free cash flow conversion $0%

-

Acquisitions to accelerate our growth

Aoyt spena oL N

ROATCE

: stron

g returns
.

Strong balance sheet

-~ Liabilities to shareholders R U TP )
of acquired businesses e $oote P




Organic revenue growth

15%

O

MBIAIGA

Reported revenue growth

29%

1 20 N Tl oL Tae e L LT HUH T i . - 2
et Lot Ae e omae s - e T e Adjusted operating margin E
[BIVRS R EUNKA L S RPN L : : -1 - T (]
{See table 3) RN S Zoostote : 1 809% ‘f—,
o

Employee pension obligations FX tailwind and interest headwind o
R o fargely offsetting - g
R Free cash flow conversion s

Q0%

Net debt/EBITDA

1.4«
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Gross debt drawn at year end £370.6m

Net debt ot year end

 £3289m




INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is integral to

our strategic ambitions and provides a solid

foundation for our businesses to scale.

Our risk management
framework

DIPLOMA PLC

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE
TEAM

LOCAL MANAGEMENT TEAMS

OUR BUSINESSES

Top down

The Group manages
horizon scanning for
emerging risks, review
of principal risks,
internal controls,
processes and risk
management
framewaorks

Bottom up

Qur businesses
continually identify
risks and opportunities
to feed into sector and
Group risk reviews




Risk appetite Emerging risk  Description o
T LTS T Technology Teeee o 5
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s decentralised operations, which
have different Sectors and geographical
spread, helps mitigate the potential impact

of these principal risks.

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Downturn/instability
in major markets

Risk category

Macrosexte ol risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

S,

Thic r'sk remgins at a smilar leve to iast

vea” and s addressed continuous y i our

TISK MmN IQenent LIoCess.

Adverse changes in the major markets
that the businesses operate in car resu t
in siowing revenue growth due to reduced
or deloyed demand for products and
services, of margin pressures due 1o
increased competition.

Tne businesses identify key market drivers

and moenitor trends ana forecasts, s well

as maintaining close relationships with key
custorners whe may give an egry warming
of siowing demand.

£ Aumber of choractenstcs of the Groun’s

busimesses modercie the immpact of

eromom ¢ ond Dusiness Swees

- The GroLp's ousinesses opergte in three
cifferent Secrors with different
charactenstize and 2C o5 @ numser oF
QROgrapTIc TCTKeTs,

- Tre businesses ofer =ised products
and services, which e o ten specifc 1o
ther appIcclion, NCegs ng customers
SwtCTING Costs

- Amigr proporuon o the

COMOrSes CONSUMaD & D

operating budget. ~athar 1hor thro

capita budgets,

Losnrent

phizotiors, -ather than ofigno

s
Juicrnent mianLtactLe




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Supply chain

Risk category
Strategic risk

Board risk appetite
Coutious

Change in risk

©

Supoly chain disruption has reduced
since last yeor but operational
interruptions at customers and suppliers
continue

The abilty to service our customersin a
tirnely manner is a key part of our value-
added proposition.

For rmonufacturer-branded products,

there is the risk that existing distribution
agreements and vertica! integration of
suppliers is cancelied, therefore losing access
tc key distribution channels.

There 's also the risk of:

- A supplier taking awaoy exclusivity.

- Manufacturing lead times increasing as
a result of supply chain shortoges. We
have experienced this, particularly with
suppliers based in Asia, in the current
year,

- Supply chair partners not operating to
the same ethical stondards as Diplerna.

Managernent continues to pursue
diversification strateqies and requiarly
seeks arernative sourcing.

Long-term. multi-year exciusive contracts
have been sgned with suppliers with
change of conirol clauses, where
applicabie, for protection or compensation
in the even® of acguisition.

We maintain strong relaticnships with
stppliers and xeep customers updated in
the event of change to retain key business.

Meeting with key customers regularly
to gain insight into thelr prodict
requitements and market developments.

We work with our suppty chain partners

to hesp thern meet our standards of
acceptable working conditions, financial
stability, ethics and technical competence.
If they ore unable to meet these standards
then we wil: source product eisewhere.

Inflationary
environment

Risk category
Macrodexternal risk

Board risk oppetite
Cautious

Change in risk

®

Significant or unexpected cost increases by
suppliess dug to the pass through of higher
commaodity prices or other price increases,
higher trade tariffs and/ar foreign currency
Huctuations, could adversely impact profits
it businesses are unable to pass on such cost
INCreases to customers,

improved pricing processes and the
value-added activities undertaken by the
businesses mear we are better able to
DAss Cost increases 1o customers,

A numper of characteristics of the Group's
businesses moderate the impact of
economic and business cycles

- The Group's businesses operate in three
different Sectars with ditferert
characteristics and across a nurmber
of geographic markets.

— The businesses offer specialised products
and se-vices, which ore often specific to
their application, increasing customers’
switching costs.

- Ahigh proportion of the Group's revenue
comprises consumable products, which
are purchiased as part of the custorner's
operating budget, rather than tnrough
captal budgets

- In many cases the prodects are wsed i
repar, mantenance and refurbishrment
apilications, rather than orgnal
ecuipnent manfacture

O

MIAIOA
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Unsuccessful
acquisition

Risk category
Strateaqic risk

Board risk appetite
Tolerant

Change in risk

S

The acquisition pipeline remains
healthy ond Diplorma retains its
disciplined approach to bringing
high-quality, value-enhancing
businesses into Diploma.

Diploma has a strong history of disciplined
acquisitions. The business model of the
Grour is based on successtul acquisitions in
large and developed markets and sectors.

Tre fallowing are the key risks of an

acquisition process:

- The Group may overpay for a target.

- The acquired business mMay experience
iimited growth post ocquisition.

~ Losz of key customers or suppliers post
integration.

- Potential cultural misfit as smaller
businesses are faced with the new
requirements of a listed Company.

The above moy be the result of inadequate
due diligence, poor integration or unrealistic
assumptions used i the investmert case.

A cearly defined gequisition strategy
is in place with ¢ discipiined approoch,
including financial retur= hurdies, to
bringing high-quality, va.ue-enhancing
businesses into the Group.

An experienced Corporate Developrment
team is respensible for seeking ond
evaluating new acquisition opportunities
with the Corperate Development Director
reporting to tne CEO.

Aformal due diligence process is followed
for every acquisition, with close supervision
by the CEO and relevant Groug senior
management. A forma!l governance
process is in place up to Board leve’

A disciplined post-acquisition integration
process covers operational, financial,
governance, legal and reporting matters.
The Board reviews performance of recent
acguisitions annual'y.

Geopolitical disruptions

Risk cotegory
Macro/externatl risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in Risk

@

This risk remnains eievoted in cem1an
geographies, inciuding due to ongoing
events such as the corfict in Ukrare

Orplomia operates in established economies
with stable poiiticai and lega’ systems.

Geopolitical events that couid disrupt the
Group’s operotions are mainly related to:
- Interruption of trade agreements.
- Toriffs
- Change of trade relationships armongst
countries in which we operate
ie.g. Brexit).
- Government budget spending.
~ Poltical erections.

We cantinue to diversify our supply base
and invest in product -ange developrrert
to mitigate exposure 1o any single mMarvet
or region.

Whenever possible, we capitaiise on Group
synergies and ieverage inter-company
trading.



Ctoge

©0
©0

Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation

Health & Sqfety Some Diploma businesses are exposed to The Covd-19 pandermic ploced o greater
Heatth & Safety nisks, including via the focus on Health & Safety and preventive

Risk category environment in which treir empigyees, mMeasures e im't the spread of Covid-19

Operationat risk contractors, customers, and suppliers mplermentng and continuously evolving
operate, or through the products they seli, tnese megsures has improved Heaith &

Board risk appetite Safety acress the Group.

Averse I .

Additionaily, maonagernent continues to
Change in risk promcte mental heaith and wellbeing,

©

Relative to FYZ1 there has been a
significant decrease in Health & Safety
risk as a resuit of the conclusion of the
Covid-19 pandemic and improvements
in processes arising from the pandemic.

offering support to colleagues and accese
1o an employee assistonce programme,

Technology & cyber

Risk category
Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

S

The rige of

i 2022

cyber-attacks remained nigh

Tne buginezzes mairtained a high
stanoard of cybersecurity whilst
arcommodeting remote working
oracucss mter tones where strict
DCRDDwWne WETE I7 DRICE O O response
te. the Cov d-7% pondeTis

Group and operating business management
depend critically on trmely and relioble
infermation from their IT systerms to run
their businesses and serve their customers’
needs.

Any disruption or denial of service may
delay or impact decisicn-making ¥ reliabis
data ‘s unavoilcble.

Foor infarmation hendling or interrupton
of business may alse lead to reduced servire
to custorers. Unintendes actions of
employees caused by 0 cyber-ottack Tav
also lead to gisruption, includnig fraud,

The decentralised nature of the Group,
includ'ng stand-alone T systemns for each
business, finnits the potentio: impact to any
individual business. There is good support
and back-up buit inte local IT systems.

All busingsses 'nthe Group nave a robust
cybersecusity pragramme and we requiarly
engoge with cybersecurity experts to
continuaus y irrprove and strengthen our
T eysters,

& forvalised ERF approval and
IMmzlemertaiicn process encsuies
businesses ~ave the most suitab e
T systems to effectvely manage
thenr nusiness
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Talent & diversity

Risk category

Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Caouticus

Change in risk

@

This risk has increased in the year mainty
due to current market labour conditions
with the tightening of labour markets
affecting candidate availability and
retertion, upward pressure on wage
levels in certain geographies and
changing expectations of working
environments.

The success of the Group 1s built on strong,
self-standing management teams in the
operating businesses, committed to the
success of their respective businesses.

Asg aresult, the loss of key persennef can
have an impact on performance for

a limited time period.

Not having the right talent or diversity

at all levels of the organisation to deliver
our strategy, resulting in reduced financial
performance.

Contractua* terms such as notice periods
and non-comipete clauses con mitigate
the risk in the short term.

The Group places very high importance

on planning development, motivation

and reward:

- Ensuring @ challenging working
environment where managers feel they
have contro! over, and responsibility for,

el businesses.

- Implementing a structured talent review
process for the developrment, retention
and succession of key personnel.

- Offering balanced gnd competitive
compensation packages with a
combination of salary, annual bonus and
iong-term cash or share incentive plans.

- Giving the freedom, encouragement,
financial rescurces and strategic support
for managers to pursue ambitious
arowt™ plans.

Product liability

Risk category
Operational risk

Board risk appetite

Averse

Change in risk

S

This risk remains ot a simiar leve 1o
lost year.

There is a risk that products supplied by o
Group business may fail in service, which

could lead to a claim under product figbifity.

The Group may be exposed to legal costs
and potential darmages if the claim
succeeds and the suppiler fails to meet its
lfabiiities for whatever reason.

In situgtions where a Group business is
selling own-branded products and cannot
subragate the liobiiity tc a supglier, the
busiress will be liabie for failure of the
product.

The Group has iiabiiit v insurance in place
providing appropriate cover for each
business.

Technically qualified personnel and control
sysierns are in place to ensure pioducts
meet quality requirements. The Group's
businesses are required to undertoke
product risk assessrrents

and corriprehensive supplier quality
QssLrance assessments.

The busnesses, 0 their terms and
corditions of sale with customers,

wil typemlly rirrer the terms and
co~ditions of pu-chase from the suppliers
1o limit any liobaites,




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Foreign currency

Risk category

Finonzial risk

Board risk oppetite

Caoutious

Change in risk

S

This risk has -ermained ot a simiiar level
to last year

The Group Is exposed to two types of
financial risk caused by currency volatiiity:
transiotonal exocosure, on transiating the
results of overseas subsidianes into UK
sterling; and transactional exposure, due 1o
operating businesses’ revenues or product
costs being denominated in a currency
other than their local currency.

Transiational foreign exchange risk orises
primarily with respect to the US doliar, the
Canadiar dotlar, the Australian dollar and
the Euro.

A strengthening of UK sterling by 10%
against all the currencies in whicn the Group
does business, would reduce adjusted
operating profit by approxirmately £17.0m
(9%}, due to currency translation, Simila-ly,
a strengthening of UK sterling by 10%
against all the non-UK sterling capitat
ernployed wouid reduce shareholders' funds
by £31.6m {5%).

Transactional foreign exchange risk arises
principally with respect to US dollars and
Euros. The majority of the Group's Canadian
and Australian businesses’ purchases are
denominated in US dollars and Euros. The
Greup's US businesses do not have arvy
material foreign currency transactionat ris«.

The Group operates across a number of
diverse geographies but does not hedge
translational exposure of operating profit
and net assets.

The Group's businesses may hedge up 1o
80% of forecast {for a maximum of 18
rronths) foreign currency transactional
exposures using forward foreign exchange
contracts.

Roiling monthly forecasts of currency
exposures are reviewed on & regular basis.

Details of average exchonge rates used in
the translation of overseos earnings and of
year end exchange rates used inthe
translotion of overseas balance sheets, for
the principal currencies used by the Group,
are shown in note 26 1o the consoiidoted
financial statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Non-compliance
with laws

Risk category
Qperational risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

@

Lows governing businesses continue

to increase in volume, scope and
complexity. As the Group scales,
businesses are increasingly subject to the
regulations of multiple jurisdictions thot
may not all olign with one another.

Our businesses are facing ¢ large number
of regulatory cnanges over the coming
years in respect of environmental

commitrments and controls.

The Group's businesses are affected by
various statutes, regulations and standards
in the countries and markets in which they
aperate. Dipioma PLC itself is a listed entity
subject to regulation and governance
requirernents.

The board of each business is accountable
for identifying and monitoring what laws
are relevant to their business, including any
emerging or changing legislation, and for
ensuring commerciai legal risks are
appropriotely manoged.

The Head of Legal advises on legisictive
and regulatory changes relevant to the
Group as a listed company and has
oversight of ail material transoctions
including acquisitions.




VIABILITY STATEMENT -
DIPLOMA PLC

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Group over

a three-year period to 30 September 2025,
which is a longer period than the outlook
required in adopting the going concern
basis of accounting.

MBIAIIAD
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CHAIR’'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

Tis b : vll':T =l I"n:- ’:Ir", u.ﬂ Pialali '\fj S 7;(‘, Seyrternbaer
rep fi: ‘r‘t ..| o i

cutin [Ratap

Principles of the UK Carporate More information
Governance Code 2018

Board leadership and company purpose

clorra e led by ary e footive ard
r"'\r'r*ntc—d P\nord dedicated to proreoting
mosusTering bl

Read micre onpriges 7

su of the
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Division of responsibilities 2od ore oo
The rales of thoe Chalr ard the Grows CEO
are: sepRara d there i an appropriate

v and Independent

Read vore o
188 to 115
amd tmfu; are m pro €
m R ars ans in place for tha Soordg
r~ Taglelat
tho Board ardits comimits

araat, i e with the O
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Audit, risk and internal centrol
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Dear Shareholder,
O benat of the Board, | orr delighted
to present the Compony's Corporate
Savernance Report for the year endeg
30 Septerrber 2022, which is my first report
as your Chair. One of the responsibilities of
Ty role as Chair is to promnete ond oversee
the hignest standards of corporate
goverance within the Boord and ocross
the Group. The Boord plays a aritical role
i ensuring that every port of our Group
conducts its business in a manner which
s consisient with etmical standards
ppropriate to g responsible corporate
ctizen, A sound corporate governance
frarmework with the right systerns and
controls is key tc ensuring sustainabie
fong -term success; we are also very
conscicus that effective governance is not
oueh o matter of regulatory compliance
DUt encomipasses many issues including
oparating vath integrity and honesty,
promcting diversity and emabling better
decisicn-making through inclusion to
ensure we balance the reeds of all
stakehoders and aperate in o farr and
transparent manner.

Triie year Wil oe the 30th anniversary of

e publication of the Cadbury Committes’s
1encrt on Lorporate governance, the
townding document for teday's UK
Corporcte Governance Code (the Codel.
Trie eoo-t hightighted the importance of an
eHective boara in creating ard mainicining
good corporate governance and set out the
fundamentals of good governance which
remma’n in the curert Code. As the
environent i~ which corporate C'tizens
operste has evorved and our Group has
comtinued to grow 'n scale and compexity,
we nave continued te develop and ‘mprove
what constitutes good governance with a
narticutar focus on stakenoiders
sustaratyity ond iong-term vaue creation.

“The high standards of
corporate governance
underpin everything
we deliver.”

The Boord is very conscious of the role 't
clays in ensuring that Diploma cperates in g
manne” whicn is consistent with the highest
standards of corporate gavernance. The
panderr: ¢ has aocelerated the evolution in
the anprocenes of sharehalders ond other
stokehoiders 1o these and broader 1opics.
Financial performance is no longet the sole
guiding reason for a corporation, instead it
must consider its place and role in society,
its resilience and ts abifity tc cregte vaolue
cver time for o wide ronge of different
stakeholders. Throughout the last few years,
we have developed cur approach and
thinking around shareholders and
stokeholders, hov we capture their views
and defver tneir interests. A core element
of this is the work thot the Board has done
over the yeor to ensure that Diploma
cantributes to wider society through
sustainabie, long-lerm practices os well as
through our Delivering Value Responsitly
(DVR) targets. Further infornation on cur
sustainabiiity programmes can be found on
pages 42 to 53. We have also continued to
evolve and emned our DVR programme
throughout the Group. Insights from our
DVR programme have been used 1o inform
steps taken by the Board, executive
managerent and aur businesses to
improve the efficiency of systems and
orocesses, with the goal of fuither
empowering our colleagues, increasing
agilty ond speed in execution ond
enhancing oca’ accountability.

Effective ieadership and optimai colleague
engagement depends on a healthy,
empeowered and postive business cuiture.
Diplorra has a strong purpose, set of values
and cohesive cutural fundamentals which
Jovern our actions and provide guidance
across oul varied businesses even in recernt
chaliena'ng times. The impcrtance of
culture has peen particuiarly acute ths vear
as our co'leagues continued to adapt to
new ways of working. Further actails on now
the Boord has ~monitored and assessed
cuture can be found cn page 99.

We will continue to refine and develop cur
GOVETNOTNCE DIOCesses, 16 Ensure rohustness
and efhcency, ot Board teve and tnroughout
the Group, na way which enables the
creaticr. of custamable long-term value for
our enorenclders and stokeho ders,

Board succession and evaluation

Board succession remans a key area

of actvity and focus. Following the
retirerment of John Nichcics at our Annua
General Meeting (AGM! on 19 Jonuary 2022,
lassumed the roie of Chair of your Beoard.
Barpara Gibbes stepped down as CFD on
30 September 2022, ang Chris Davies was
appeointed to the role on 1 Novermber 2022,
Anne Thorours and Andy Smith are due to
retire prior to the 2024 AGM and therefore
e Board has commenced the process of
seeking sutable candidates 1o taxe over
their Committee Cnair postions. Tne Board
s keenly aware of the need for diversity and
nclusion, whick is @ key component of the
Group's DVR programme. The Board will
continue to set the rght conditions ond
iead by example through ts own appoach
to inclusion and diversity goross its
compaos.tion. further ictormmation can be
found inour Nomination Committee Report
on pages 108 1o 113

A key aspect of good governance i< for the
Board to criticaly self-analyse itself, its
rembers and Commrittees, in order o
continually imprave its effectiveness. The
Board caries out eftectiveness reviews
arnually, and e FYZ2 tin's wos undertaken
Arernaly ir ine with the Code, This
evaluation has alse enatled the Board to
ideritify opportunities for 't 1o further
improve 'tz sfectiveness, additional geta’l
o0 the evaluation results and areas of

agreed focus can pe found on poge 113

The Boord's pricrities “or 2023 remain
comsistent, witr a continued focus o the
imolemertation of the Group” strategy;

chaleng'ng and empowernng r-anagerrent;

success'an planming and managerment of
sk, Your Boaora is wel placed w0 execule s
stewardship roie to ensure that 1he Group
cortinues to evolve. scale and deliver
Ong-tery sustainabie growts. Ve wil Jlso
continue To be agic, adaptng our thinkng
and prionties and promoting the nierects
of our investars, emnproyess and Gther
stokeho.ders over The 20T NG e Tra,

Oar AGM vt s
| hopre it o

yOu wil De ab et ottt
Board of Di-ectors o
vou feci ame mportar
of the Grown.

e O”!y inie M
AL tre TUturg Sus

David Lowden
Chair
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GOVERNANCE AT A GLANCE

Ethnic diversity Gender diversity Length of tenure

57% O-3vears
14% 3-& years
29% 6.9 vears

100% MNon-sthi rimnrty Meala

semale

57%
43%

Skills and experi;r'; ce

B2B, Industrial & Dierrh o ostnrs

Retail and FMCG Se

Finarcial and Risk Moo goener

Dperations

Customer Service

Health & Safety

Strategy

M& A/Financing

International Business

Board and Committee attendance FY22 (as at 30 September 2022)

Remunergtion Committee

Member Board Audit Committee

Nemination Committee
David Lowden 8/8 '  4/4 5/6

John Nicholas 3/3 . ' i/l 171

Johnny Thomson

1010 - R -

Barbara Gibbes /9

Anne Thorburn 10/10

Andy Smith 10/10

Geraldine Huse 10/16 o

Dean Finch' 9/10

1 Dean Fimeh was tnamie toante -0 -

Changes to the Board
- John Nicholas stepped azwn from the
Board on 19 January 2022,

Barbary Gibbes stepped down from the

s appoimed as Chair of
: Soard or 30 Septermnber 2022

it or Lot tee

Board octi\lity and focus area

75

Operations

Strategy and strategic exs4
Governance

¢

Collzegues and Culture
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Our governance framework
The Board comprises the Chair, Executive Directors ond independent Non-Executive Directors, and is responsitle for the perfor-rance and
long-term success of the Company. including health and safety, leadership, strategy. values, standards, controls and risk managenent.

David Lowden
Crar

v et

Audit Committee
Chair: Anne Thorburn

Oversees and monitors the Company’s
financial statements, accounting
processes, audt (internal and external),
internal controls systermns and financial risk
management procedures. Also rmonitors
the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and reviews the external auditer
independence and performance,

See more on pages 102 to 107,

Treasury Committee

Provides oversight of treasury octivities in
implementing the treasury policies
approved by the Board.

Anne Thorburn

Group Company Secretary

glellEslato R o)

Board Committees
Nomination Committee
Chair: David Lowden

Requilarly reviews structure, size and
composition of the Board and its
Cormmittees. ldentifies and nominates

suitable candidates tc be appeinted to the

Board. Leads the Board's succession
planning and keeps the senior leadership
needs of the Group under review.
Oversees the development of a diverse
succession pipeline.

See more on pages 108 to 113,

Administration Committee

Conducts genercl business
adrministration on behalf of the Company
within clearly defined limits delegated by

the Board and subject to the matters
reserved to the Board.

//\\

Loothzt they e To 0Tt tng o rnen

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Andy Smith

Reviews and recommends the framework
and policy on Executive Directer and
senior management remuneration.

Reviews workforce remuneration policies

and alignment with culture.
See rmore on pages 14 1o 138.

Disclosure Committee

Oversees the disciosure of market
sensitive information.

Chief Executive Officer a

Executive Directors
nd Chief Fi

= [

nancial Officer

- B L

Executive team
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

David Lowden
Board Chair & Nomination Chair

Joined
October 2020

Current external appointments:
Seror independent Director,
Maorgan Sindal oic

- CThair, Capita PLC

Relevant skills and experience:

- industnia and Distribution Sectors

- Francial and Rise Managermert

- Operations

- Srrategy

- M&A gnd Finanting

- tmrernationd Busimess

Past appointments:
- Cnair, PogeGrour ol
- Senior ingepondent Director,
Bere~aser pic

- Chair. Huntewo 't“‘

*ehtor Yiticm H"l" jote
reess Nor dwide o
ec.tive To, or Neson Sofras

Johnny Thomson
Chief Executive Officer

Joined
February 2019

Current external appointments:
Neore

Relevant skills and experience:

- BB industrigl, Distribution and Serv ce
Sectars

- Fnancial and keek Management

- Cpermiors and Custorre: Service

~ Strategy

- M&L and Fnoncimg

- international Business

Past appointments:
Group Finance Director,
Cempass Groug PLC

- Regonal Managing Directer, Latn
America, Compass Group “LC

Chris Davies
Chief financial Officer

Joined

MNoweroer 2022

Relevant skills and experience
- Fetar and FMTG Sectors
a & Fge Managerren

S L

2 g Custormes Serios

Anne Thorburn
Senior Independent Director & Audit Chair

Joined
Septermber 2075

Current external appointments:
- Non-Exezutive Drector and Cnalr of the
Ludnt Cormmittee, 7T Electrornics pic

Re!evqnt skills and experience:

- B2Bindustna and Marnufactunng Sectors
- Financial and ='sk Management

- Strategy

- MEL and Fin
- nternctions

ansin

Bosinsss

Past appointments:

- Chief Fingnc'o Offcer ExsiaGroupp o

- Group Fina~ce Dir
Britien Povythens in

- Non-brecutve Direcior BTG oo

Past uppomtments
~ CHiefrnc
Notional Bxe
- Group Fhanc
fang |vmerie
- Cmef Financ o
nagec Dic

Current external appomtments
- ™on
“Maotostit, Tinoerats

rot

s el




Andy Smith
Independent Non-Executive Director
& Remuneration Chair

Joined
Fepruary 2015

Current external appointments:
- None

Relevant skills and experience:

- Mealthcare, Zeral, FMUG ang Utiter
Sectors
Cperations, =R and Zustaner Sen ce

- Strotegy ond Rse Manogemen:
Sustamabilty, Divers'ty Sgot
and Heolth & Sofety

- oternotiona Business

Past appointments:
- Managing Drector, Se.e
- Water Servizes Divactor,
- Groun HR Diector
Tne Beots Comipary PLC
Custormer, Retad ang Techno o

Severn Trent pic

Committee membership
[R] Remuneraman

- Zuait

Morrinatien

. Crer

Geraldine Huse
independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
January 2020

Current external appointments:
- Freaicent, Frocter & Gamble, Canada

Relevant skills and experience:
- Retalone "MCG Sectors
r Service

amisationa! Developrment

Past appointments:
- Cre® txecut ve Officer, PAG Central
turope

- Crair ot the omstitute of Orocery
Dretrbution

John Morrison
Group Company Secretary
& Heod of Legal

Joine

-

Dean Finch
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
May 2021

Current external appointments:
- Group Chief Executive, Persimmen PLC

Relevant skills and experience:
- BZB ndustricl, Services and Retail Secrors
- Finanmal and Risk Managerent
- Operations and Customer Service
- Healt~ & Safety
M&A and Financing
- Strategy
- Internauona! Business

Past appointments:

- Chief Executive CHficer,
MNationa! Dxpress Qroup olo

- Group Chuef Executive, Tube Lines

- Group Finonze Director & Group Chief
Operating Officer, FirstGroup pic

enced FTSE Comnpany Sacreto y
~mercial salaiion, dohn iz responable
prionce anc

the Orocc's egal cor
Ceernance o mevori.

CrRCrate govermo
rd procenures are Bt

e oand comtrotioet o
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible to snareholders for
the Group's financial and operationg!
performonce, risk management, cutture,
and is collectively responsible for promoting
the long-term suczess of the Group.

The Board Ts responsible for manitoring
progress made against strategic objectives,
appraving proposed actions and ensuring
that the appropriate internal controls are in

place and that they are operoting effectively.

There is a formmal schedule of matters
reserved for the Board which sete out the
structure under which the Board manages
its responsibitities, providing guidance on
how it discharges its authority and
manages the Board's activities. The Board
is assisted by three principal committees
(Audit, Nomination and Remuneration?,
each of which is responsible for reviewing
and dealing with martters within its own
terms of reference.

Matters reserved for the Board
The Board has a formal schedule of
matters reserved for its decisions:

purpose, strategy and management
values, culture and stakeholders
membership of the Board and other
appointments

financial and other reporting and
controls

audit, risk and internat controls
contracts and capital structure
communication

rermunergtion

delegation of authority

corporate governance and other
matters

el
&3]

[
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MONITORING CULTURE

Purpase, culture and values

Tre Board s responsible for ensuring *ﬂcnt
e Group achieves its purpose, whi
consstently deliver value and reveard its
stakenosgers by making a differerce tc our
colleagues, custoTers and communities, in
reviewing and ensuning the impienentcticn
of the Group's strotegy, 1ne Board ersures
that the objectives of our purpose are met
while also taking into account the risks and
ooporTunities facing the Group.

T"F 2018 UK Corporate Governonce Code
e Code) em'\hos‘ses the importance of
the rote of the Board regarding cuiture, wth
speciic recommendations that the Board
assesses and moniters. Our decentralised
-niodel means that culture is embedded in
cur businesses, eqchk of whicr has s o
urigue aspects which we oelleve Jre cnrical
¢ the agtonomy and errpowerment tat
nde p\n: the GrOJp S SuCCess. HQV\« ower,
there are core shared vaues acroce our
businesses: respect, Continuous
miproverment and accountabiity.

Durng the veor. the Board has mentered
coture in g rumoer of ways. This 'ncludes
J5IrEss visits, presenitaticns fror Sector
% ﬁ-p strategy evigw sessl [Ielal
25 apdotes o peop'e and cutire fro e
Group =R G rector. Successfuiy scanng up
< velue-add model requires constant
e, ut'on, and aur culture has ¢ cntical “ole
to ploy i Juﬂpcrtmj growth. When
coneidenng acguisition strateqes, cuturg!
fic is also an rmportant area of focue ang
LRI,

< e el

OOFG

Time of the key ways in wiich tee B

ccn mper.pr\ce and evataate the culturs 1

i LT n

se o T'gm o

rhe JSE TN rwf‘—'““ 202/_ ond vist Windy Tty
Wite 'r Ch cogo ond Hercuies Arterariet

"he results of ou Groop

Engagement Survey 1Je
510 37 haove alsz procided
gt

A PR

ArriLae Pig

How the Board monitors culture

The Board
- Strotegy updotes

- CEQ's report

- Prese~tations by the Orcun HR Lirector

~ Sector and function oresemtat oms

- Ernployee engagement survey

- Ste visits

- Board Committees

O Boord Committees a.sc play 2n

T portant role in monitaring sur culture.

—~ Remunesation Cormarittes recoves
undates from the Group HR Drector that
orovide an OVErV v of paw structures
ocress the Groug ond their alignmr erit
with our ourpose, valucs and stro
This aliows the Cornmittes to ersu
the relevant peolicies ang practices are
consistert with cur values.

- Audit Committee bas ove 2'ght

controls and continuous ascess 1o ntermnc!

audit, both of which com give -
indicat'on of culture. particusarly homing
ir onony negative elerents that don't
align with the Groug’s cuiture

Employee engagement

he Board is commritied 1o en
wth erployees and nas onsis
emp‘f\yee engogement mme TRy
o t1e Code but felt that olternict
mietnods are more appropriate. Glven
the Group's decentialised nodel and its
OQOOrOphi('Gi spread, the Board bas

continued with a mu't -foceted approace

*.o engagerrent with the gional wordoice
that is not led by any one Drector or grous
of Directors.

Yve consider that engage! by the loco
Managing Directors (MDs) vt thier owr
worvforce, together with stiong charne's

of comr untcot'on fror MD: 1o their
recpective Sector CEO as wall oo

corrniunication wite the 3
ed oy the Groag's centra
crowvides on effect ve plotic
trarenarent e way diclsgue vt

ernoioyees.

U\l_\ T
o fon

of intarna;

The Boad feels wel informed on coneague
views 5ng matiers ond uses o combination
of ""@Ihr_‘dc 1o comply with the Code's
reguirerments:

- Reguior updates t¢ the Board at every
scheduled Boord meeting on people
mgtters. Over the past yvear, colleague
veellbeinig and rmorae have been arecs of
keen focus.

- Colleague, talent and eu'ture updates
fror tne Sroup HR Director.

- The Rermmuneration Zomrmittee reviews
woreforce ooy practices across Diptomna.

- Tre Soard regularly undertakes site viaits.

Executive Boara rmebers reguiarly

inTeracT with imdindual businesses and

sur figt structure ersures strong channels
of commurication.

- The boord wos p.ese ted with the

aatzao e of the Group Coileaque

ermanit Su:ve\, w\.d discussed these

eter wth key learnings. We were

delighted wth the ~igh participation rate
and engageert ndex score; the “ull
recilte of “he survey are detciled on sages

361 57
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Set out below are some of the key activites,

Strategy & strategic execution

25%

Regularly reviewed the Group's
performorce agoirst the strategy
including ocnors taken ir respect of
managing the candemic.
Presertaticrs by the Corporate
Developr-ert Director arnd Sector
lcadership on strategic pricrities ord
execJtion against those priorities.
Reviewed and discussed our ESG strategy
and opprogch. Delivering Value
Responsitly

Reviewed and approved the Group’s
M& A and business devoloprmert
activities, reorganisatiors and varicus
cther projects.

- Strateq. redew session.

matters considercd ard des

d

Finance

20%

Receiver _p-aotes on the Group's financial
performance.

Approved the 2023 budget; monitored
performance against the 2022 budget
through regular presentations from the
CFrO.

Assessed ond approved the proposed
dividend poyments, bolancing the views
of various stakeholders,

Investor relations: received regulor reports
including share register mavernent and
feedback from analysts and investors.
Presentations from Tax and Treasury
Functions.

Control of Treasury and Tax policies.

sions rade by the Beard in the year.

Operations

-~
10%

Reguior updates from the CEQ.
Moritored and discussed the impact
of Covid-12 on the Group’s operations.

- Modern Sigvery Staterment.

Sectar presentations.




Colleagues & culture

15%

Reviewed Group Colieaaue Ergogermerit
Survey.

Received reports on workforce wellbeing
throughout the year.

USA site visits,

Talent and succession update.
Whistleblowing reports.

15%

Received reports on the macroeconomic
environment, world events and emerging
trends.

Annual risk review: review of principal
risks to ensure they remain appropricte
together with mitigating acthvity;
reviewed and approved the inciusion

of new and emerging risks.

Guarterly risk updates.

Cybersecurity briefing.

- Annual Insurance Review.

Governance

ety

.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

5/5

Anne Therburn
{Chair)

Andy Smith 5/5

Geraldine Huse 5/5

Dean Finch 5/5

The role of the Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for
ensaring that the Group maintains a strong
control environment. It provides =ffective
gavernance over the Group's financial
reporting, including oversight and review
of the systemns of internal contral and risk
maragement, the performance of internal
and external audit functions, as well as the
betaviour expected of the Group’s
ermployees through the whistleblowing
policy and simitar codes of conduct. The
Committes continues to focus on
monitoring and overseeing management
on these improvements tC governance,
compliance ard finoncial safeguards.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

102 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

K

ey matters discussed

Reviewead and agreed the scope of audit
waork 1o be undertaker by the external
auditor and agreed the terrns of
engagement and fees 10 be paid for the
external audit.

Reviewed the Annual Report & Accounts
and received reports from the CFO and
the external auditor on the key
accounting issues and areas of significat
judgernent.

Reviewed the report on compliance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
and reports on the provision of
information to the auditer.

Reviewed the report from the CFQO on the
controls in place to mitigate fraud risk.
Reviewed the Half Year Anrouncement
and received reports from the external
acditor on the key accourting <. —
areas of significant judgemenrt.
Reviewed the trading updat

Reviewed the effectiveness -

internal cortrol and risk rouare
procedares and where apr -
recormmendatiors to the &

for improvement.

Invited the Group Internal &Lt Lire:

to attend meetings to rev :

of the internal audit waork

year and to agree the scopse i
internat audit work 1o be iz o
“ollowing year.

Reviewed the UK Corper =

Code 2018 and future rorme

section 172 Companies 7 ¢

Approved the Caormmit ta

programime for 20235,

Approved the Going (oo ore
Statements.

Continued to momnitor =g

audit reform and char w0 s

Recaived training ane

axternal advisors on L

reporting requirermer

Creersaw the audit por e




Dear Shareholder

The Audit Committee assists the Board in
dischaorging its responsibilities veth regqard to
rnanitoring the integrity of Group finoncial
reporting, external and internai audits and
contro’s. This inc'udes advising on the
recppeintment and indeperidence of
external auditors and assessing the quaity
of their services; and reviewing the
effectveness and approprioteness of the
Companry's internal audit activities, internal
controls and rronogement systems.

During the year ended 30 Septernber 2022,
the Cormmittee hos ensured that it has had
oversignt of ail these areas while aiso
focusing on diverse changes in the external
environment, both reguictory and political,
ncluding any cortinued residual impact

of the Covid-19 pondermnic, which has had

a range of implications on the risk
management activities of the Company.

“Adapting to

a changing
environment and
new ways of working
to ensure financial
integrity and robust
and effective internal
controls.”

1T T e
B DT G

B Annear Fepn ot 2022

The Commitiee continues 10 monitor the
uncertainties arising fram thess changes
and consider the manogernent and
mitigation of these risks. in addition, the
Commttee has recenved reports on interna’
audits ‘or the Group's businesses, together
with several deep dive sessions including

in respect of audits of recentiy acquired
businesses, as well as updates on the steps
being taken tc address internal audit
findings and control issues.

commerted in iast year's report thot the
Committee was mindful of the changirg
governance tanascope and potential weight
of anticizated reguigtion in the near future,
given the nurnber of recent formal reviews
undertaken regording different aspects of
corporate governonce and cudit market
reform. In particular, we note the UK
government s proposed reforms to the audit
and corporate governance regime which
were published on 31 May 2022 and wirich
include te creation of g new regulator for
the aud't industry ond increased disclosure
requirements in respect of internal comtrois.
in anticipotion of these reforms ond under
the supervision of the Comrnities,
rmanagem™ent has started pianning for
expected changes, including preliminary
steps in determining the scope and contents
of the Company's audi and assurance policy.

The Committes has also monitored
intiatives of other regulatory authorities

to provide investors with consistent,
comgoarable and refiaoie information on
climote-re ated and ESG matters. We o-e
supportive of reguiation thot enables
informed investrment decisions and support
efforts to encouroge harmonisation across
reguiatary regines.

As Audit Chair, hove regular corversations
with the CFO, Group internal Aldit Director,
Group Financial Controller, Group Cormpany
Secretary & Head of Legal and also the audit
parter ot PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(Pw(), our external auditor.

PwC has now completed its fifth full arnual
cycle, and we value the rigour and challenge
of its approach. | am pleased to report that
again there have been no significant centrol
deficiencies or accounting irregu.arities
reported to the Committee this year. The
Committee plans to commence a retender
process for the oudit during 2026/2027 for
the FY28 Annual Report and Accounts in
order to make any necessary changes to
providers of other serv’ces in o timely and
orderly fashicn and to appoirt an auditor
before the start of that year as this is in the
best interests of our sharehelders Tam
confident that the Audit Committes has
carried cut its duties effectively and to o
high standard during the vear, providing
independent oversight with the support

of rmanagerment and assurance from the
externa ouditors. [n accordonce with UK
-egulations, PwC adheres t¢ a rotation
naiicy based on best practice and the Group
engagernent partner will serve a period of
~asonger than five years. Chiris Burns
pecarne the lead audit partner for the year
enged 30 Septerber 2018 following the
appoltment of PwC, and therefore this wil
be nus fina’ audit.

I ook forward tc meeting shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting cr 18 Jonuary
2022 angd wili be happy to resoond to any
guestions relating to the activities of the
Audit Committee.

Anne Thorburn
Chair of the Audit Committee
21 November 2022
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Audit Committee

The Committee is chaired by Anre Thorburn
and comprises four Independent Nan-
Executive Directors. The Committee acts
independently of the Executive Directors
and management. Our members have

a range of skills and the Committee as @
whole has experience relevant to the Sectors
in which the Group operates. Anne has
recent and relevont financial experience,
as required by the Code.

The Group Company Secretary & Head of
Legal acts as Secretary 10 the Committee,
The Executive Directors also attend
Committee meetings and subject matter
experts are invited to present on specific
topics as and when required. The
Committee met with the external auditor
during the year, without the Executive
Directors being present.

The Audit Committee confirmns that the
Company has complied with the provis.ons
of the Commpetition & Markets Authority
Crder throughout its financial year ended
30 Septemnber 2022 and up to the date of
this report.

Financial reporting and significant

financial judgements and estimates

The Commiittee considered and assessed:

- the full year and haif year resutts, and
trading updotes for recommendotion
1o the Board;

- the appropriateness of aoccounting
poiicies and practices, as weil as critical
accounting estimates and key
Judgements; and

- whether the Annual Report, taken as
a whoie, is fair, baionced and
understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's position and
performance, business model and
stroteqgy.

104 Diplomao PLE Annust Reoort 2022

The Committee considered the matters set
out beiow as being significant in the context
of the consolidated financial statements for
the yeor ended 30 September 2022 These
were discussed ond reviewed with
management and the external auditor; the
Committee then challenged judgerments
and sought clarification where necessary.

The Cormnmittee considered the judgemerts
made in preparing the financial statements,
including the accounting for acquistions
and assecioted valuation of intangible
assets, the provisions for excess and
slow-moving inventory, the potential for
impairment of goodw:li and the
appropriateness of the Going Concern
assumption. The Committee also reviewed
the moverments in the Group's defined
berefit pension schemes.

Accounting for acquisitions and
disposals

The Committee reviewed the accounting
for acquisitions completed during the year,
in particutar the acgquisitions of R&AG Flug
Power Group and Accuscience. The
acquisitions were materiol for the FY2Z audit
and, in accerdance with IFRS 3 (Business
Combinations), management has
performed a fuli fair value exercise for these
two acguisitions in this year's financiai
stoterments. As part of their adit of the
Group, the external auditor has performed
work on:

a} the Purchase Price Allocation (PPA):

b) the opening balance sheet os at the
acquisition date; and

¢} oudit of any material farr value
adjustments arising on the acguisition
balonce sheet.

The Committee reviewed a~d chalienged
management’s assessment, which alse
included consideration of the externa oudit
findings. The Committee concludec that
the accounting for these two acquisitions
and the other five smailer acquisitions is
approoriate.

The Group completed two disposals in

the year for combined proceeds of £21m
resulting in a net profit on disposal of £7.3m.
The profit on disposal has been presented
within acquisiticr and other related iterns.

Provisions for excess and slow-

moving inventory

The Committee reviewed the report of

the CFO that set out the gross balances,
together with any reloted provision against
the carrying value of inventory. The
Committee reviewed the bases used to
value inventory held across the Grouo; they
alse considered the appropriateness of
provisions held against the carrying value
ot inventory, having regard to the age and
volumes of inventory relative 1o expected
usage and considering the actions taken in
response to supply chain disruptions during
the year and ary continued impact of the
Covid-19 pardem’c.

Following its review, which also ‘ncluded
consideration of tne external audit findings,
the Committee conc'uded that the
provision for excess and slow-moving
inventory is appropriate.

impairment of goodwill

The Comimittee cansdered the corrying
vaue of goodwil and the assurnptions
underlying the impairment review. The
iudgernents in relation to goodwill
immpairment largely relate to the
assumptions underlying the calculations of
the vaiue in Lse of the cash-generating units
{COUs) being tested for impairment. These
iudgernents are prmarity the caleulation of
the discount rates, which have increased
due to rising risk free rates and the cost of
debt, the achievatiity of rr anagement'’s
forecasts inthe short 1o mediorm term
against the backzrop of ¢ challenging
MACroeconomic envi-onment, residucl
impact of the Covid-19 pa~demic and the
selection ¢f e ong-terT: growth rate.
Foillowing the rew ew, whicn aiso inctuded
consideraton of tre externa’ gudtt findings,
e Committee conciaded that the carrying
vaue of the ggodwil recorded is appropriate.




Other audit matters

Tre Committee also considered other less
rnatenal matters inciucing the valuation of
the Greoup's oefined benefit scheme and the
impact of the key actuarial assumptions on
the baiances. The Committee s satishied
with tne yeal end position and the
assurmptions used.

In addition tc the above, the Cormmitlee
alsc seeks comments from tne auditor on
whetner the Group's businesses follow
appropriate policies o recognise material
strearms of revenue, and their audit work
carmed out more generally has assessed
whether there s any evidence of
management averride of key internal
contrels designed to guard against fraud
or rmaterial misstaternent

As part of its mentoring of the integity

of the finoncia! statements, the Committee
reviews whetbher suitable accounting
poticies have been adopted and whether
management fas made appropriate
estimates and judgements, ang seeks
suppert fromm the external nuditor to
assess them.

Going Concern and Viability

The Going Concerr and Viobility gssessment
was prepared by managerment. 10 preparing
the ggsessrnent, management carried out
revetse S1ress testing Qs wel us scenaric
andgiysis. Two scenarios were cons.dered

- the base case and the downside case. The
base case reflects gotual recert trading and
taxes account of any furtner rewidua’ immpact
of Covic-19. The downside csse -eHects a
mrore significant dectine i trading, adverse
movernents in wondng copial and lower
than forecast operoting margn ondis
cons.dered by menogement e be o severe
bur prausisie so

nario,

Tre Growg has ople fgucty ard covenant
headroom in each szenorio for kith Gong
v Stotorent purooses.
Tre Audt Committee reviewed the
asﬁ‘u”:ptlaﬁf u.'“»derpr‘ﬂ:“wg eo0T e
and s sotichied 4t managerment's
ert and conciusions

G Concor o W

Concern ang Vick

gssesarret o s

+euy - 1
‘ound or noge |

Engagement of the external auditer

The externat auditor is engaged to express
an gpinion on the financio’ statements of
the Group and of the Company. The audit
inciudes the cansideration of the systems

of internal financial contro” ond the data
contoined in the financial staterments, to
the extent necessary for expressing an audit
opinion on the truth and fairness of the
financial statements.

During the year, the Committee carred out
an assessment of the audit process, led by
the Chair o the Committee and assisted by
the CFO. The assessment focused on certain
criteria that the Committee considered 1o
be important factors in demonstrating an
effective audit process. These factors
included the quality of the audit process
and the robustness of challenge to
management, key audit risks and how these
have been addressed, the planning and
execution of the audit and the rale of
rmanagement in the audit process.

The Committee was satisfied that the
PwC audit of the Company and Grous had
provided a robust and effective audit and
an appropriate independent chalienge of
the Group's seniar management. it also
supported the work of the Committee
through dear and cbjective communication
on developrents in financial reparting

and governance.

The Cormmittee aisc oversaw the cudit
partner rotation process as Chris Burns, the
current lead audit partner, is due to rotote
atter this FY22 year end. A replacernent has
been identified and has been snadowing the
audit process to ensure a smooth handover.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Non-audit services

The Committee has approved the Group's
imternal guidelines covering the type of
nor-audit work that can be carried out by
the external auditor of the Group, inight

of the reguiation set out in the EU Audit
Directive ond Audit Requlation 2014 {the
Regulotions) and the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) Revised £thicai Standard 2019.

The Regulations substantially curtail those
non-audit services that con be provided by
the auditor to the Group and in particular
prohibits all tox related services, inchuding
compliance services as well as general
advice ond all consultancy and advisory
services. The Reguiations stipulate that
Board approval is required if eiigible
nor-audit services, such os due diligence
and similar assurance services, exceed 30%
of the prior year Group oudit fee and the
Comparny may not allow eligib’e non-audit
services 1o exceed 70% of the Group oudit
fee, caicuiated on a rolling three-vear basis.

Tre CFC does ~ot hove delegated authority
to engage the externa' auditor 1o carry out
ary non-audit work, but must seek approval
from the Chair of the Audit Comrmittee.

Taxation services are not provided by the
Group's current audit firm; a range of
different firms are used for the provisicn

ot tax advice and any assistance with tax
compliance motters generally. In add tion,
due diligence exercises on acquisitions and
similar tronsactions are not provided by the
auditor, but are placed with other firms.

The externa’ auditor is retained to carry out
assurance services to the Committee in
connection with agresd upon procedures’
on the Group's naif year consolidated
financial stotements (£28,000). The externci
auditor aiso provides cccess 1o its Viewpoint
technical sunscrpt'on service (£1,200].
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With the exception of these services,

Pw( has not provided any non-audit
services 1o the Group or its subsidiaries
and has confirmed its independenceto
the Audit Cormmittee. Further information
i5 set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financio! staternents,

The Comrmittee assures itself of the
auditor’s independence by receiving regular
reports from the external auditor which
provide details of any assignments and
reigted fees carried out by the auditor in
additicn to its normal audit work, end these
are reviewed against the above guidelines.
PwC has reconfirmed its independence for
the current financial year.

Risk management and internal control
The principal risks and uncertainties that
are current’y judged to have the mast
sigrificant impact on the Group's fong-term
performance are set out in @ separcte
section of the Strategic Report on Internal
Control and Risk Management on poges
8010 88,

The Cammittee is responsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's system of
\Mermai controt. The systermn of internal
contral is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
Lusiness objectives and can only provide
reascnable and not absolute ossurance
against materiai misstatement or loss.

The Group has the necessary procedares

in pigce to ensure that there is an ongoing
process tor identifying, evaiuating and
maraging the principal risks to the Group.
These procedures are in ling with the FRC's
gu'dance. The Board has established a ciear
organisational structure with defined
authorty levels.

T=e day-to-day -unning of the Group’s
business s de‘egoted to the Executive

D rectors o tne Group who are supported
o the neads of each business Sector and
funcricng neads of the Group.

Key financict and operational measures
relating 1o revenue, cash and receivables
are reported on a weekly basis. Detailed
management accounts and key
performance indicators are prepared
mionthly using a robust proprietary reporting
system to collect and angivse financial dato
ina consistert format. Monthly results are
rmeasured against boeth budget and hatf
vear reforecasts which have been approved
ond reviewed by the Board. Al capital
expenditure above predefined ormounts
must be supported by a poper prepared by
rmanagement.

Alt financial dota s taken drrectly from each
business’ trial balance heid i ther local ERP
systern and reandlysed and formatzedin a
separate Group management reparting
system, operated by the Group Finance
deportment. There is no rekeying of finand'al
data by the Group businesses t¢ repot
monthly financial results. The Group Finance
department cortinles to develop the
functionality of this management ~eporting
systern 1o provide greater nsights into the
financial and operational activites of the
Group's businesses.

The Group's internat auditor reguicy audits
the base data at each business to ensure 't
is properly reported through 1o the Group
management reporting system

As part of the year end close process, each
business is required 1 complete g seif-
assessment that evcluates the inancia!
control environment in their business,
designed to idertify weaknesses in controls.
These assessments are critically reviewed
By the Group internal Audit Director and
evaluated as part of regu.ar internal

Audit reviews.

A surmmmary for each business is prepared
far the Audit Comnmitee. n addit'on, senior
managernent of each business is rejuired
1o confirm its adherence witn Goup
occounting policies, processes and systes
of imernal contral by mears of o
representation etter.



Tne Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's risk
rmanagement and internal control systemns
for the period from 1 October 2021 to the
date of this repert. Taking into account the
matters set out on poges 87 to 88 reiatng
to principal risks and uncertainties and the
reports from the Group internal Audit
Director, the Board, with the advice of the
Cornmittee, is satistied that the Group has
in place effective risk management and
internal control systerns.

Internal audit

Tre Group maintaing an internol audit
department which reports directly to botb
the CFO and Chair of the Audit Committee.
The department comprises a Group Internal
Audit Director and a Group internal Auditor
pbosed at the Group's offices in London.

ir January 2022, the Group Interna!l Audit
Director presented his audit plan for the
year to the Committee for its approval,
Increasingly during the year, internal audit
undertock oudits in person as travel
restrictions were [ifted in a number of key
jurisdictions. The departrrent continued to
effectively rely on remote visits with the use
of appropriate communication technolagy
whete site vis'ts were nct possibie.

The scope of work carried out by internal
audit generally focuses on the internai
financial, operational and compliance
controis operating within each business,
including nsk managerent activities and
business process improvements. Formal
written reports are prepared on the results
of eachk internal audit visit that set cut
internal control weaknesses/risks identified
durlﬁg their work, together with
recommendations to improve the internat
control environment and mitigate these
weaknesses/risks. These reports are timety
and regulorly discussed with senior
rmanagement within the Group. The reports
are also shared with the external cuditors.

()
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At the end of the financial yeor, the Group
internal Audit Director formatly reports to
the Committee on the results of the internal
audit work carried out by his departrmernt
during the year. The Committee raviews
managem™Ment's responses To matters roised,
including the time taken to reso've such
matters. Updated repo-ts on progress
against the pian are provided at regular
intervals and the Aud't Chair also meets
separately with the Group Internal Audit
Director ot least twice a year to review sorme
of the deportment's reports and discuss
their findings.

There were no significant or high-risk
matters identified in the internal audits
undertaken during the current fincnciot
vear. Several recommendations were again
rmade this year to the businesses in regard
1o implementing adequate and effective
irternal cantrols and procedures aimed

at imnproving existing processes arolnd
cybersecurity, inventory management

and procurement.

The Committee conducted the annuol
review of the effectiveness of the internal
audit department, inctuding its audrt plan,
general performanze ond relationship with
the external auditors. Bosed on its review,
the Committee was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group's internal oudit
function, specifically that the ‘nternal audit
department s sufficienty independent of
executive managernent and has sufficient
resources and scope tmat is aopropriate for
the size and nature of the Group.

Whistleblowing

The Committee also monitors the adequacy
of the Group’s whistieblowing palicy, which
provides the framework to encourage and
aive employees confidence to ‘blow the
whistle’ and report irregulerities. The palicy,
together with hothne posters, are placed on
site noticeboards across the Group.
Ermployees are encouraged 1o raise concerns
via the confidential multiingual hotline,
which is managed by an independent
externa company ond is available 24/7,

365 days a year.

All reports are provided to the Group
Company Secretary & Head of Legal for
review, to ensure that they are appropriately
investigated — with the support of imternal
audit and external resource, if required.
Maost matters reported through the
whistleblowing service relate to personnel/
HR ratters ond, while these are not areas
for review by the Committee, such matters
are duly investigated in the same manner
as any cther issue raised.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

4/4

Ec:vid Lowt;t;n
(Chair)

Anne Th;rburn 5—/3

Andy Smith 5/5

Geraldine Huse 5/5

Dean Finch 4/5'

171

John Nicholas

The role of the Committee

The Mornination Conmittes reviews the
compesition of tha Soard and principal
Committees, considering skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity reguirements betore
muaking appropriate recormnmendations to
the Boord regarding ary changes. it clso
rmanages succsssion planning for Directors
and the Group Company Secretary and
oversees succession plannirg for senicr
leadership across the Group.

% Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplic.com
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Key matters discussed
Recruitment of o Chief Financial Officer
and broader succession plarning for
Chairs of Audit and Remuneration
Committee.
Censideration of a detailed skills,
experience anc diversily matrix that
sought to identify recruitment prionties
based on idertifed gaps, industry
expectations and good practice.
tocilitating a maore diverse list of potential
candidotes ahead of the search for twao
Nen-Execative Directors by setting clear
oblectives for the external search
consultants and ensuring o clear
articulation of the company’s ongoing
coemmitrnent to impraving diversity in role
specifications.
Consideration of the contributions
effoctiveness of the Nor Exec e
Directors seeking re-e




Dear Shareholder,

l'am pleased to set out below the report on
the activities of the Nomination Committee
during the year.

Tre Board is of the view that it is essential
to have an approcriote mix of experience,
expertise, diversity and independence. Such
diverse attrbutes enabie the Board as a
whoie to provide informed opinions and
advice on strategy and relevant topics,
thereby discharging s duty of oversight.
Appointments to the Board are made
fo\lowing consderation of the experience
and expertise of ex’sting Directors, any
reguired skill sets or competencies, and the
strategic requremants of the Group. During
2022, the cocmpostion o the Board changed
shightly, reflecting: (i} John Nichelas
stepping down from the Board, and (i) the
departure of Borbarg Gibbes.

A fundarmental responsibility of the
Committee is to ensure plans are in piace
for orderly succession to the Board, as wel!
as our Group Company Secretary and senior
management positions, and the Committee
debates these regularly. The main focus of
the Committee during this past year has
been on Board succession planning,
inzluding the appointrment of our new Crief
Fingnciar Officer and the search for the
Chairs of tme Audit and Remuneration
Committees te ensure these pesitions are
appointed in tirme for an orderly handover.
The Committec continuahv monitors the
balance on the Board 1o ensure we have the
right comizingtion of skilis, experience and
knowledge corsistent with the long-term
strateqy of the Cormpany. This allows us to
dertity where further focus is needed in the
coming vears and beyond.

We are rmindfu: of the discussions around
improveng diversity and inclusion. together
witn the Targets set by the Hompton-
Avexander Review ond the “arker Review.,
Falowing the departure of Barbara Gibbes
at the end of the fimnancal year, two out of
seven Drectors (28.57%) are women. it is
the Boaro's aim to meet the targets set by
the Hareoton-Alexander and Farker reviews,
deciing ~.17 gender and ethnic diversity
respeTtively, which s feasThie gqven current

SUCCRLEILN madnis.

The Board wil maintain oversight of the
range of activities tne Group is pursuing
aimed at increasing the diversity of our
workforce - including the executive pipeline
that is essenticl for Executive Disector
succession plonning. YWe have written
elsewhere {see page 40} obout our Group-
wide opproach to diversity and inclusion,
which emanates from the Board and
impacts the approach of the Nomination
Committee.

The FRC's guidance on boord effectiveness
recognises a breadth of diversity that goes
peyond just gender and race, and inciudes
personal attributes inciuding intellect,
critica: assessment, judgement, courage,
honesty ang tact; and the ability 1o Isten
and forge relationships and deveiop trust.
This ensures that a board is not comprised
of like-minded individuais. The Committes
agrees that diversity is vital when reviewing
the composition of the Board and setting
the criteria for the recruitment of new
appointees, alongside succession planning
activities. External search consultants are
expected to make evary effort to put
‘orward diverse candidates for new Board

positions. Whilst appointments wilt continue

1@ be made on merit and agoinst objective
criteria, it remains the Commitiee's
intention that the diversity on the Boord
will continue to incregse over time

The Cormmittes has also maintained its
focus on the executive succession prpeline
and senior management succession plans
within the Group, reflecting its responsibility
tc ensure approprigie plans are in place.

David Lowden

Chair of the Board and Nomination
Committee

21 Novernber 2022

“Ensuring the right mix

of skills and
experience to deliver
long-term value for
our stakeholders.”
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Nomination Committee

The Nomingtion Committee is chaired oy
David Lowden, Board Chair. The Committee
comprises the Non-Executive Directors and
meets as Necessary 10 discharge 1ts
responsibilities.

The Group Company Secretary octs as
Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee reviews the cormposition

ot the Board and principal Committees,
considering skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity requirements before making
approprigte recommendations to the Board
regarding any changes. It also manages
succession pianning for Directors and the
Group Company Secretary, and oversees
succession planning for senior leadership
across the Group.

The Cormrmittee’s role and respansibilit-es are
set out in its Terms of Reference, wrich were
reviewed during the year ond aporoved by
the Board.

+

Process for Board appointments
. P - e e - - -

Induction and professional development
The Chair, assisted by the Group Company
Secretary, is responsible for ensuring that
there is a property constructed and timely
induction for new Directors upon joining the
Board. Upon appointment, all new Directors
are provided with a comprehensive
induction, where they meet with key
members of management ond familiarise
themselves with oll core aspects of the
Group, its businesses and the markets in
which it operates.

Directors are encouraged, wherever
possibie, 1o visit the Group's sites so that
they can get a better understanding of
the business and interact with employees.
While travel was restricted and complex
during the Covid-1? pandemic, site visits

by individual Directors {and the Board as

a whole) have resumed and aliowed
Directors to see Diplorna’s safety and
sustainability processes, tc talk with local
management and workforces and to assess
how effectively Diploma’s culture is
commuricated and embedded at al! levels.

The Chair alse has the responsibility of
ensuring that Directors receive training on
@ continual basls in support of their ongeing
developrment. This training is provided by
way of technical updates, reports and
briefings prepared for Board meetings.
Directors have full access 1o our corporate
advisors os well as a regular and
comprehensive supply of financial,
cperational, strategic and regulatory
inforrmation to heip them discharge their
responsibilities.

During the year, the Board held o strategy
review session to confirm the Company’s
strategic goais as we | s receving detciled
updates on operations and suppert
functions.

Step1

The Committee
reviews and
approves an

outline brief and
role specificotion
and appoints a
search agent to
facilitate the search

Step 2

A Committee
member

discusses the
specification with
the independent
search agent, who
preparas an initial
longlist of
candidotes

Y0 Diploma PLC Arnug, Teoot 2022

The Committee
then defines a
shaortlist of
candidates and
we hold interviews

Step 4

The Committee
maokes o
recommendation
to the Boord for its
consideration

Step 5

Following Board
approval the
appointment is
announced in line
with the
requirements of the
FCAs Listing Rules



Induction of our new Chair
Tl arsled Boars Chair

Soth T st ints the role,
“beyvinduction highlichts are

Calendar of activities
November 2021 January 2022 March 2022

Meeting all Board Handover with Visit to Windy
colleagues, bot outgoing Chair City Wire in
individually and Chicago, and
collectively Hercules

Aftermarket in
Meeting Group Louisville in the US,
heads of functions

Visit to Shoal Group,

IS Group and

Clarendon in

the UK

Diplarma PLC Annual Repory 2022

April 2022

Chair Q&4
published in the
Purple Portal, the
Group's newsletter
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Onboarding processes

The decentralised nature of the Group has
always made induction precesses complex.
The pandemic led us to reconsider how
these processes can be conducted
effectively. Custormarily there would have
been face-to-foce meetings with key
executives and management, introductions
to their direct reports, one-to-ones following
the initial meetings, and site visits arranged
to key businesses. Now parts of the
induction plan are conducted vig video calls;
particularly where key people are located
outside of Furope. This permits Directors to
have considerably greater exposure to the
various businesses and personnel and we
are pleased that we can once ogain
encourcage Directors to visit our businesses
and appreciote our culture and colleagues in
person as well as continuing 1o deveiop their
understonding of 2ach business.

Succession planning

The Committee formaliy reviews succession
planning for the Board, Groun Company
Secretary and Head of Leaal, and senior
rmanagement at least once each year,
taking inte account the challenges and
opportunities Tacing the Group and the
background, skills and expertise that will be
required by the Group in the future. During
2022, fellowing the appointment of the new
Board Chair, the Committee undertook @
more thorough anatysic of the Board's
competencies. The Commitiee aise
considered how the Board would be required
1o evoive to be fit for the future, as well as
any potential gaps that may need to be
filled through succession ar training.

The CEO manages the development of
succession plans for executive
managerment, and these are overseen by
the Cormnmittee. The CEC and Grouo HR
Director presented o succession planning
update to the Board in January 2022.

The Committee is aware of the importance
of identifying critical roles within the
businesses to ensure we retain and motivate
key talent and have the necessary skills for
the future. Overall, it was clear that we have
a good executive and management
succession planning process and,
importantly, succession is being actively
managed by the Executive team to achieve
the desired long-term outcomes.

The standard term for Non-Executive
Directors is three years. They normally serve
for o maximum of nine years, which is split
across three terms of three years each. All
Directers are subject to annual re-election.
With only specific exceptions thot may be
necessary 1o ensure Board continuity,
Non-Executive Directors shall not stond for
re-election after they nave served for the
period of their independence, os determined
by applicable UK standards, of nine years.

Length of tenure

200 2016 2007 2018

2009 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

David Lowden

Andy Srrith’

Anne Thorburn

Geraldine Huse

Dean Finich

. Lengtn of terr

1 Directorintnia ard fingeterm.
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Board evaluction

The Board conducts an annual evaluction of its performance and that of its committees and, in accordance with good practice, engages g
an ndependent third-party facilitator to gssist in this process every three years. For the year ended 30 Septemnber 2022, the evaluation of p
the Boord as a whele and of its committees was undertaken intermaily, led by the Board Chair. Board mermibers completed gquestionnaires 2'

regarding the operation and effectiveness of the Board and its committees. Findings were coliated by the Group Company Secretary and
the Board Chaoir discussed the conclusicns and recommendations separately with each Director

The performance of the Non-Executive Directors was reviewed by the Board Chair. The perfermance of the Executive Directors was
reviewed by the Board Chair and the Non-Executive Directors and the results of the 2022 evaluation process were considered by the Board.
The conclusion was that the Boord continued to function weli, and the enboarding of the Board had been weil received, resulting in
improvernent to Board processes and workplans. Directers operated in an atmosphere of open and constructive debate with o good
breadth of skills, experience, and viewpoints, Following the evaluation, the below recommendaticns were made:

recruitment process,

w

o+

. - -
Recommendation Action g
o

Consicler the diversity of the Board, from both a gender and Nomination Committee to address diversity requirements in %
ethnicity standpoint. succession planning and during the Non-Executive Director o
o

-]

o

-

Lo

Continue to challerge and support on the progress of DVR actions.  Consider £SG skilisets during the Non-Executive Director recrutment
g P prog g
process, creation of on ESG Committee as well as enhonced focus on
climate-related financicl risks.

Improve infarmation shared with the Board to enhance visibility on - Boord papers to include executive surnmaries to bring focus to Q
certain topics and improve decision-making. discussions, and Sector presentations to the Board to include key 3
indicators of custorner and suppler performance. e

=
®

The Company expects 1o updote shareholders on the progress made in relation 1o the motters identified above in its 2023 Annual Repert. Q
<
®

Key areas for development 3

The below recommendations were made following the 20271 external Board performarnice evaiuation. 8
a

Recommendation Action

Consider increasing the size of the Boare and bringing in further Nomination Cammittee reviewed the composition of the Board

skills relevant 1o Diploma’s size and operations. and incorporated this inte successicn planning.

Board training programime 1o be evaived. Additional sessions included as part of annuai calendar as welt as

bespoke sessions from aavisors Gz requited.

Erployee engogement 1o be reviewed. increased numiber of site visits, with Non-Executive Directors
conducting these indvidualy on occasion and providing feedback
to the Board,

s
3
o
=
e,
=
wn
-+
o
-+
3
@
=
-
“

Boara scredule to be reviewed. Board dinner in the evening prior to meetings included to cover
" i
specific areas of focus or concern and perit fu-ther infora
engagement witn key mmansgement.

UOIIDWIIOSU] JOYAO
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member
Andy Smith (Chair)

Meetings attended
Y

Anne Thorburn ' &/6

6/6
676
6/6

David Lowden

Geraldine Huse '

Dean Finch
John Nicholas N

The role of the Committee
The Committes, on behall of the Board,
agrees all ospects of the rerma neration
ot the Executive Directors. it agrees the
strategy, direction, and colicy framework
for the remuneration of the senior
axecutives wha hove signiticant influence

=1 the Group's ability to meet its strategic
asbjectives, The Committze also oversess
all workforce remuneration policies.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

114 Diplorma PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed
Approved Remuneration Committes work
programme for 2022,
Reviewed the AGM 2022 votes on the 2021
Rermunerationr Cornmittee Report
Reviewed ard proposed the new
Directors’ Remuneralior Pelicy, and as o
result, propesed amendments 1o the rules
of the Diploma PLC 2020 P5R
Approved the service contract for the
new CFO.
Approved anrual performmarce bonus
targets and the subsegent bonus awards
‘or 2022.
Approved new Performance Share Fian
(PSP) awards for Executive Directors and
Group senior management.
Corfirmad the vesting percentages for
the P3P awerds made in Decermber 2019,
which crystallised in 2022,
Reviewed Executive Directors’ salarizs,
pensions, and benefits.
Reviewed the fees of the Chair and
Non-Erecutive Directors.
Reviewad remuneration framewaork ‘o
Fxecutive Team and seniar manaas
ir the operating businesses.
Reviewed workforce remunearation
framework.
Approved the 2022 Rermuneratic
Cormmittee Report.




Dear Shareholder

As Chair of the Board Rermuneration
Committee (Committee), | am pleased to
present our Directors’ Rermnuneration Report
(DRE) for the year ended 30 Septernber
2022 ona our revised Remuneration Policy
far which shareholder approval will be
sought ot the January 2023 AGM.

Context and approach to remuneration
Our people lie at the heart of our success.
As our business grows and becomes maore
complex, our people, teams and
arganisation must grow with it 11 is vitat
that we have the right colibre of people and
that we incentivise excellent performance
and reword thern when they do. On poge
118, Diplomo's approach to remunerotion

is Hustrated showing how strategy,
perforrmance ond reward dlign. In o
decentralised Groua. we work hard to
balance alignment with locar accountability
and ogility. Our reward policies and
practices have supported the growth of the
business well over the years. During this
policy period, our performance has been
excellent and cur talented manogernent
tearn have doubled the size of the business.

“Reinforcing alignment
of strategy and
reward, 2022 was
a very strong year
of performance,
strategic execution
and consequently
reward. Long
term growth and
shareholder returns
are excellent.

Our plans remain
ambitious and we are
pleased to set out our
Remuneration Policy
for the next phase

of growth.”

5 Dplaaa PLC Annuai Repert D001

It is against this backdrop that we have
considered cur remuneration policy tor the
dancorning three years.

2022 performance and pay

The Diploma team has delivered arother
vear of strang financiol results, adding to
the Group's iong-term track record of
excellent business performance and
shareholder returns. Organic growth has
been driver by revenue initiatives, positive
demand, and pricing. Alongside this,
implereritation of our strategy continues
apace with tne acquisition of new
businesses to bring new capabilities and

opportunities to drive future organic growth.

With regards to scaling, it has been a yeor
of excellent progress building infrastructure
for scale, developing the target operating
model, and evoiving the structures,
copability and culture of the Graup.

Excellent aelivery against our strategic
priorities of growth, scaling and Delivering
Vaolue Responsibly have resulted in strong
performance (shown in table on page 119).
Adjusted operating profit {(+299%), reported
revenue (+29%) and free cash (+11%)

all exceeded annual bonus targets {on page
130}, resuiting in a full bonus payment of
125% of salary for both Johnny Thomson
and Barbara Gibbes,

Ourieng-tenr: performance continues to
create excelient shareholder returns, Gur
three-year compound annual growth rate
{CAGR) for adjusted earnings per share
(EPS) s 19%. This exceeds the performance
rarget maxirnum of 14%, and the return

on adjusted trading capital employed
(ROATCE) is 17.3% meaning that the
underpin applying 1o our PSP is in line with
the Group’s financial model and meets the
Boord's expectation. Our reigtive three-year
total sharehclder return (TSR} performance
is v the Pst percentile of FTSE 250
companies lexciuding financia. services and
nvestraent trusts), ranking 15 out of 158
companes, Bosed on these excellent results,
tre Performance Share Plan [FSP) (PSP
(20091 has vasted ot raximure “or Johnny
Thomvison and Barcara Dibbes, as well as all
ather PSP participanits,

Jehnny Thomson's 1otal compensation
for 2022 {shown in the Single Figure tabie
on page 129) is £3.8m (2021 £5.2m). The
difference versus last yeor is mainly due
to tower share price appreciation.

In fine with the Code, the Committee
reviewed individual Directers’ incentive
plan outcomes and overall remuneration
considering the Group's underlying
performance. We have not made any
adjustments to our remuneration schemes
as a resuit of Covid, no furlough support
was taken, and no discretional adjustments
have been applied to outcomes.
Accordingly, the Comrnittee is satisfied
that the incentive plan cutcomes and the
total remuneration received by Executive
Directors in respect of the year ended

30 Septernber 2022 are consistent with the
levels of company perfermance delivered
and that the Remuneration Policy is
operating as intended.

Appointment of new CFO

Chieis Davies joined Diplorma as CFO on

1 November 2022 ofter Barbara Gibbes

ieft the Company on 30 Septernber 2027.
Having played an impoertant role in helping
to steer Diplome through the pandemic and
building streng foundations for the future,
the Committee determined to treat Barbara
as @ good leaver and her remuneration
arrangernents on departure were in
accordance with the Remuneration Policy
and plan rules. Her exit arrangements are
set out on page 129.

We appointed Chris following a thorough
process, which considered internat and
external candidotes. Diploma was Barbaro's
first FISE Beard oppointment and her
package was set accordingly, Chris’ packoge
is cornmensurate with his experience as an
established CFO with an excellent track
record in decentralised, service-led,
rmulti-national organisations. it reflects the
increasing size and cemalexity of Diploma
and the important support he will provide
in the delivery of strategy, business
performance and a robust financial control
framework. This provides the right balance
withie the company and reflects a fair
package, The details of Chris's packoge are
la'd out on page 124, Consistent with cur
policy, Chris received buy-out owaras n the
formn of cash, Dipgloma shares and Dioiame
PSF gronts 1o compensate him for some of
tre variable rermuneration awards that he
~as surrendered noorder 12 ioin D'p-crra.
Foyments ta<e account of the detaile of

MBIAIBAQ)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CONTINWUED

the remuneration foregone including te
nature, vesting dates and performance
requirements attached to that
remuneration and poyments will not exceed
the expected value being forfeited. Exact
amounts will be finalised following the
pubiication of his previous ermployer’s resuits
and will be disclosed in next year's DRR.

Remuneration in the workforce

The skill and dedication of Diploma's
colleagues lie at the heart of our success.
The Group achieved outstanding levels of
colleague engagement again th's year
{rmore information on page 36 to 37).
Remuneration in Diplorma provides a careful
balance thot enables local decision-making
in line with our decentrolised business
rnodel, whilst ensuring guidance and
governance from the Gioup, and inciuding
a review of pay equity, which is one of the
Group's ESG pricrities.

The CEOQ poy ratio for 2022 (detail on page
135) has reduced from 1801 to 1261, The
principal recson for the reduction s lower
share price appreciation from market
movernents. The mediar pay for UK
colleagues has remained ot a similar level
£29,074 (2021: £29,034), with the addition
of ca. 400 new emgloyees from UK
acquisitions. If we exclude empioyees who
joined through acquisitions, the median
pay for the UK workforce has increased
rmarginaily 10 £29 550.

This vear's Group reward guidance to the
businesses focused on looking after
colleagues. The first priority wos focusing on
colleagues affected by inflationary pressures
arising from the mocro-environment,
ncl.ding energy prices and other -ising
zosts of living. For the first timme the Groug's
Jovernance inciuded an indegendant revievy
of coleagues in lower paid roles {<£40k per
annumy), and these co leagues received an
averoge increase of 7.5%, higher than the
overall workforce increasc.

For senior ieaders, the rationale for 1mcressing

remuneration is recogritor of increasing
responsibilities in a growang business and
incentivising future growth aligned to
Cinlema’s strategy. We remnain conscious o
ens.-ing we can retain top teent it hghy
competitive internationa. markets.

¢ Diploma PLC Annua Renart 2022

The 2022 overali base salary increase ocross
the Group is 7% for the workforce (2021,
4%,), inciuding senicr managers. The
rmanagement team and Cormmittee will
continue to review total compensaton
proactively in order to ensure our wider
workforce is fairly rewarded. The Committee
considers workforce perspectives when
setting Rermnuneration Policy, Executive
Director compensation and overseeing
seniofr Mmanagement compensation
framewaorks.

Remuneration policy review

The Committee completed a
corrprehensive policy review in 2022. The
review process is set out on page 120 and
covered a number of key factors.

The Group has increased considerabty in size
and compiexity in this policy period (shown
i the diogra on oage 120). Since the
appcintment of our CEC in 2019, the Group
has coubled in size ““om a combirotion of
strong organic growth, strategqc execution
and the acquisition of 25 strategically
important busnessas. Snarehoiders have
benefited and Jiplorma has grown from
FTSE 185 1o FTSE 11 aver the period and the
Grour's plans remoin ambitious. Designing
ou” poihicy o recngnise the increased
responsibiiities to attract, retais and
incentivise management for the next phase
of growtn was a tep pror Ty

£5G is incrensingly important to aliour
stakeholders and we wish to ntroduce
targets intc our variable pay. Ensuring that
bonus measa-es are rigorous, specific,
stretching and go bevend the 'day job'is
anessent'a prnciple of reward in Diplomna.

Wore is underway 10 develop Delvenng
Value Respane oly s 0071 of the strategy
and we have set scme non-Snancial KPls
and torgets (shiwn o~ paae 59) but more
time iz needed 15 astLTE TNESEe Medsures
before we can mtroduze them imto vanabie
pay. Accordng our pronosed policy nas
fexipility 12 introduce £S5 metrics duning
this poicy perod (ot an approp: ate Doint)

Within the wider stakeholder context,

we considered how we reward our whole
workforce, as covered earlier. Thea senior
managerment team engages frequently
with employees, either on a business-wide
basis or in the cortext of smaller focus
groups, to solicit feedback generaily on

a wide range of matters, inchuding
rermuneration. Feedback is passed to the
Committee via the Executive team and is
taken into account by the Committee when
setting Executive Directors’ Remuneration
Policy. Additionally, we poid attention to
how governance is evolving and have made
a numper of enhancerments in our new
policy which ore set out on poge 121
including increasing minmum shareholding
requirements {MSR! and post cessation
sharehoiding requirerments.

The last step in the policy review was to
review relevant market data to inform

{but not drive) the Committee’s
considerations. (dato overview is set out an
page 120). The Committee is aware of, and
shares, shareholder concerrs regarding the
risk of over relionce on benchmaorking. The
Comrmrittee’s driver fer any increased ~eward
is greater responsibility ar complexity in the
reievant role ond to recognise greater
capabitity in the indwidug!, In g growang,
very successtul business such as ours, we
are cogrisant of -etaining our «ey pecple
as they gain increosing market worth from
their proven capabiities and trock record.
In this regard, morket data does provide

a usefu' 'sense-check’.

From t~e multiple steps of the review,

the Committee concluded there was

a compeliing case toincrease tetal
compensation petentio for our Executive
Directars. The Commiittes betieves that
incorgorating the imcreose into the PSP 1o
incentivise long-termr performance best
aligns pe~formance delivery, strategic
expcuton and shaorenoder volue. Trerefore
we propese 1o mcrease the masimurm
award potential for the PSP from 250°%. 1o
300% of base salary for the CEO, and fram
200% 1c 250% of base sa ary for the CFO
alongside the ncreqses to both our in-situ
ond post-cessotion shareno dng guidelines.




Shareholder consultation on proposed
changes

Gur 2021 DRR was supported with 93% of
votes in favour. During 2022, we consubted
extensively on our policy and DRR 2022
implerrentation and engaged with 21 of our
largest shareholders, representing around
45% of our register, as well as the key proxy
ogencies. The quality of the interactions
was exceltent, and we appreciate the
engagement and vaivable feedback. There
was a range of views and preferences
expressed, but we were pleased that the
overall weight of opinicn was strongly
supportive.

Remuneration for 2023 - implementation
Fixed pay:

As disclosed previously, Johnny Tharmsor's
cash allowance in lieu of pension
contribution wili reduce to 4% of basic pay
from 1 January 2023 to ofign with the
rmajority of the UK warkforce.

Tre Committee considered Johnny
Thomson's saiary as part of the review. The
Cemmittee is aware that high nflation is
rot ¢ solid rationale for increasing executive
pay. The Committee considered the
increased size and complexity of the Group
(doukied in size gs shown in the diagram

on page 120, and Jebnny's vaiue as a
nigh-perorming CED, and concluded that
a base pay ncreqse was requirec as part

of increasing his total cornpensation
opportunity. Shareholders csked us to
review the increase in the context of
intended wider workforce pay increases, the
MQCrc- eCONOMIC erviromnment, inﬁotionory
pressures foced by our colleagues and the
overall guanturm of CEQ reward.

Having taken these views on board we
ogreed an increase to his pay of 6%, which
rernains below the increase awarded to our
wider workforce at 7%. We believe this
provides the right zalance within the
Cormpany and wil deliver ¢ competitive
CEO pacrage.

Annual bonus:

Tne 2023 anrual pe-forroance bonus wils
follow the sarme misasures as 2022, rarnely
50% adiusted operating profit, 25% revenue,
5% tree cash Aow. Targets wil be based
riihe Soord approved budget. Maximrarr,
senus tor the CrOand CRO wil remram

unchanged at 125% of bose salary,

O

PSP:

Aris'ng from the cormpellng case to increase
total compensation for the CEG, the
Committee plans to implement the new
PSP maxirnumn this yeor for the CEQ, sunject
tc sharsholder approval of the policy.
Johnny Thomson will receive a PSP cward
ot 300% of base satary (PP 2022}, Chris
Davies will receive a PSP award of 200%

of base salary (PSP 2022) (which will be
pro-rated based on him working eleven
moriths of the yeor).

A number of shareholders have expressed
a preference for EPS over TSR (provided the
ROATCE underpin rernains), and in our
comsuftotion we discussed increasing the
weighting of three-year CAGR adjusted EPS
growth to 75% of the total awaerd (from
50%;}, with 25% (previousty 50%;) rernaining
on TSR reiative to the FTSE 250 (excluding
financial services and investment trusts).
As the majority of sharenciders were
supgoriive, we intend to progress with this
change for PSP (2022}, We wili retain the
ROATCE underpin, recognising this is
critically important to sharehalders.

During consuttetion shareholders asked
that we ensure targets are appropriately
stretching giver the greater guantum of
reward propased. The Committee
recognises that increased guantum: of
reward should be accompanied by
appropriately high levels of performance

delivery. In setting targets, we seek to ersure

that the focus on organic growth is strong,
the guality of acquisitions rernains high and
that the right risk oppetite 1s maintained. In
response 16 feedback, we interd t¢ increase
EPS growth required for maximum pavout
under the PSP from 12% to 13% for the
award in 2022, Tae minimum threshold will
rernain at 5%. This provides the right degree
of streteh ambition for Diploma at this time
cersdering the organic growth
coportunities, the acguisiticn pipeine ang
the prevaent market conditions. The Board
wil rmaintain oversight of ROATCE. We vl
continue to review the levet of streteh
arnually for each PSP grant cycie,

Non-Executive Directors and Committee
evaluation

John Nicholos retired as Chair of the Board
in January 2027 and was succeeded by
David Lowden. David joined the Board as
Non-Executve Director and Chair designate
on 19 Cetober 2021, Non-Executive Director
fees were reviewed using eguivalent inputs
ond increases are shown on page 133.

The Committee’s performance was
assessed as part of the annual Boord
evaluation. { am pleased 1o report that
the Committee is regarded as operating
effectively and that the Board takes
reassurance frorr the quality of the
Committes's work.

Canclusion

in closing | would once again like ta thank
sharehoiders for their engogement over this
last vear. We will rmaintain a close dialogue
as we seek to deliver a competitive,
motivating pay fromework that is tightly
afgned to shareholder experience whilst
maintaining good goverrance standards.
I'trust you find this repert useful and look
forward to receiving your support at the
AGCM o~ 18 January 2023,

Andy Smith
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
21 November 2022
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REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE:
DIPLOMA'S APPROACH TO REMUNERATION

Set out below is an illustration of how
remuneration aligns to strategy and how it
cascades in our decentralised business model |

Our Purpose: Diploma’s purpose is to consistently deliver value and reward our stakehoiders by
making a positive difference to our colleagues, our customers and suppliers and our communities.

Diploma’s Strategy: build high-quality, scalabie businesses for organic growth

Strategic pillar Short term incentive: Long term incentive: Rermuneration
Annual Bonus Performance Share Plan Principles

&) é'EGfIIngipToﬁt: B EPS (ROATCE underpin): Een"&unerottio: 0“9”'35 o ’

o usiness strategy and promating
50% 75% the long-term success of the
N ~ Company.
Revenue: Relotive TSR: Supporting creation of

0, o, long-term shareholder value.
25 Yo 25 A Providing an appropriate bolance

between remuneraticn elerments |

- Free cash: which are transparent, stretching

SCALING 25%

and rigerously applied.
Providing a balance between
immediate and deferred
remuneration and encouraging
a high performance culture.

3. Non-finoncial KPls and targets in place, fiexibility 1o
DELIVERING VALUE introduce DVR (ESG) rnetrics into remunergtion included
RESPONSIBLY in the Policy

CASCADE OF REMUNERATION IN OUR DECENTRALISED BUSINESS:

- Remuneration Policy: updated Policy presented to shareholders for voting at AGM in January 2023;
implementation reviewed annually.
EXECUTIVE - Emphasis on pay for performance and alignment with shareholders on sustainatle long-term
DIRECTORS performance: Group Annual Bonus and PSP measured on o balanced set of defined financial
measures linked to strategy.

- Set locdlly by referring to Group frarnework which aligns metrics, targets and quanturn for
different types of role. Group governance (induding pay equity).
- Reviewed annually.
- Emphasis on pay for performance. Aligned variabie pay, using o blend of Greup and locat
LEADERSHIP performance targets.
ROLES - Wider participation in Group PSP,

- Set locally, Group/Sector governance.
- Reviewed annualty.

- Fair and competitive in lecal market,
WORKFORCE - Linked to colleague value proposition.
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2022 Broader Reward Priorities

Goal Action

Support lower paid colle%&éé_n;és:t - Woge increase f;f_éolleagues_ paid Jess than £40k of 7.5%,
affected by the cost of living crisis which is higher than the overall workforce increase.

Retain tolent in the competitive . R Wage increase for the workforce of 7% (2021: 4%).
talent market Review of variable pay structures and quantum.

Incentivise brilliant leaders on long-term success PSP participation increased to ca. 50 participants {2021: ca. 35
participants, 2020: ca. 15 participants).
To keep pace with the growing Group variable pay structures
and quantum reviewed, high pay for high performance.

Ne  Diploma PLC Annaal Report 2077




REMUNERATION POLICY

2022 Remuneration Policy Review — process

Changes to Remunerqtlon Pohcy and its |mplementcrt|on

T the L :
1. Excellent performance and increased scale and complexity 2. Wider stakeholder context
of the Group: moved from FTSE ca. 185 to FTSE ca. 1 considered during Policy review:
Adjusted earnings per share ) ) ’ - Ambitious growth plans.
: ’ Tl T - Attracting, retaining and incentivising

management.

- Increased market worth of
management given performance
track record.

- Waorkforce remuneration experience
and views.

- Focus on supporting wider workforce
during macro envirenment affecting
workforce-inflation, energy.

- Increasing importance of ESG
performance,

- Broader indicators of culture e.g.
colleague engagement (Engagement
index 79%}.

- Market developments in governance
practices, ensuring our governance
alighs with needs of stakeholders.

12 1 14 15 16 17 18 » f :
1
!
i 4
]
i
j
|
|

y

The Group has doubled whilst improving operating margin

3. Market insi“ght:
used to ‘sense check”

FY1e : FY22 : .
Ygﬁ\f;rnnue iu;f;%'::e a} Information on UK pay levels for

cempanies of similar size FTSE 15G-100
(Dipforna: FTSE 111, 30 September 2022),
b) There are few direct peers for Diploma.
Hence we use a range of companies
in similar markets or with similar
value-add business models to provide
a comparison (RS Group plc, Bunzl plc,
Incheape ple, Spirax-Sarco Engineering
ple, Rentokil Initial plc, Howden Joinery
Group Plc, Spectris ple, Halma plec, DS
Smith ple, Travis Perkins plc, Johnson
Matthey plc). Some within this list
are larger than Diploma but provide
useful insight.
¢) Variable pay targets for FTSE 250.

Revenue growth
FY19-22

@* Controls Seals % Life Sciences

FY19
Adjusted Operating Profit £97.2m
,u(operuting m:grgin 17.8%)

4. Shareholder consultation on proposed chonges.

- Extensive, direct shareholder consultation with ¢a. 65% of the register.
- Consultation with key proxy voting agencies.
- Conversations with shareholders shaped policy proposals including considerations of quantum and stretch in performance targets.




2022 Remuneration Policy proposals and rationale

Pension alignrrest wilh vaider work “orce Parsio hition for CED reduced ta 4%

1 vehae alrendy eligrz:d

‘\jtf W

crk foroe e

Improving the competitiveress of Exerutive We re tre mend o retair ans
Cirectors’ compensstion opporturity, ornpary growth The rereved Folicy
retecting armwirg busiress ard criticality perforrmarce ord | : :
of leaasrship

vt
sod ity irnplernartation
sototicns, as 1ol

orimam e

Ne chmnge 1o anecal bhonas Policy masimear:

Inereass to S e Seann 20T o

2007 e ?5’

T f-,‘l the TR

For 2022, 10 FaP arerand el t:~ leu e o T
appeirted CFO F oo

ary T 2007 of

st

cr 2022 il

e T

P noxt } 2riod o exceptional

slign pay e

saibary for CED and frore

e N
1t UM et

s Loy [roratod)

aligrent Incressed shareholdi- g quidel MSRY 1o

alge

Dard 25075 gl snalary o i

Extersion of post errployrment sharebclding regairons

[SH LR et

SR 1o be held for two years after ter~irction date.

w5 P policy macasiena

reqaire S07s ot

irtiocaction of 250 Flexibility to ircluds BESG mmetrics surirg next

wiliry period

Proposed implementation of policy in FY23

Fixed
remuneration

Annual
bonus

Long-term
incentives

Sharehoelding
guideline

Post-cessation
guideline

Johnny Thomson
(CEQ)

Base pay: £/54,000 Max: 125% base pay
Bernefits fund Target: 62.5% base
Persion: F4,035 ay

{equivalent to 4%

of base pey from

TJan 23)

Max: 500% Lase pay
PSSk (2022): 500%
base yilly
Performance periza:
three yeors

=olding pericd: five

YROIS oM grant

Holding requirzrment:
300% hose pay

Holding reguirement:

50% of MSR for 2
years atter the
terrmination datn

Max: 200% base pay
PSl 2022y, 200%;
bose pay
Performance pericd:
three years

Holding period: five
years frorn grant

Chris Davies’
{CFO)

Base pay: £450,000 Maox: 125% base pay
Benetits tund Target: 62.5% base
Pencior: £18,000 pay

(equivalent to 4%

of base pay)

Holding reguirement:
250% base pay

Holding reguirerrent:

50%; o the MSR <o
7 y=crs after the
termination dote

CEC base pay 6%
INCraase,;

CEO pension reduced,
MNew CFO appointed

Poloy maximum
ircrecsed for CEO &
CFO

PSP aweard increased
for CEO

New CFO appointec

Change from No change

2021

Shareholding
qguieting increassd in
line with new PSP
mcxima

Ircreased post-
cessatlion guideline
frem 12 ronths e

2 vears

e e Troee D e PO20 Beenureration amices Toin e taole alaaes 100

171 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2027
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Poiicy

Comorittee resen. et

“‘"(

= TE TG0y Com e e eftert o

Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link te strategy Operation Maximum oppaortunity Performance metrics
Base saiary Tz oattract ond reton - :
e ol the

0 ang
rTance,

‘Broe, sT0De

<

L AN EaeCuUte

_OTTRAry £ s aTed,y.

eI INE T, emary

Pensions

Benefits




Component Purpase and link 1o strategy Operation Performance metrics
Annual [ SN -
Performance w

Bonus Plan

O

- <
! g T e o
B -
s e - <
- . - ]
) . Pir s o

3ioday 216310435

E’erformcmr:'e' : .
Share Plan CoreelTervloln
(PSP} e |
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Chair ond Non-Executive Directors

Cpergtion

Component

~nany TG, DO

or ol o Th el toerin

YOEnset

T Ld s tox thereon

“hCoet 1310

Performance metrics

s

Selection of performance measures and targets for Annual Bon

TTITe.D T

=y

fllustration of application of Policy

oo ~

Johnny Thomson

RS RN At lo I dle LR Sat-toe

e DTty

us and PSP

aTeg o

Chris Davies

-~ T



Consideration of shareholder views

P . e et e -
TTE— i '

T

Differences in remuneration

.-

[ T L T S S [

policy for other employees

vl goes
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Tiagelnie

ol

Compensation
payable upen

Contract Unexpired Notice earty
date term pericd terrimotion

- AT -
vear S
< LUET = i R

Payment for loss of office

S TATCI L e F e

Figt-Rugtelaleln

Malus and clawboack

e}

{LexN

- Foe

Lt

Remuneration for new appo

ntments




Employee and post-employment shareh

olding re

0]

MBIAJIA

Janted soosrtre

1ioday 21623005

Chair and Non-Executive Directors
Recruitment and term

Thie Dogrs oes

A3UPWIBAOG 3ypiodioD)

IR AT

e 1y 1h.
Y e,

I
5
a
I
a,
=4
w
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Policy in respect of external board appointments for o L S : g..
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Provision 40 table

Example: <-=

Predié{dsiﬁty

Tt

Example: .o
Proportionality

Aiignmen_'c- to culture
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Executive Directors (audited)
Total remuneration in 2022 and 2021

Jonnny Themson Barbaore Gibbes
2022 2021 2022 02 2022
_ £000  £000 _ £000 £000 £000 %
_ome 365 ; 0% :
Tos - I S 3
n 15 B
807 399 1,206
) 889 o 456 0 L 1,345
7 7 B
1,725 wn
— - - -+
8
L 262 2
e LRt i =le L t 2,062 Sl a
Total variable 2,951 LaLy g
Single total figure 3,758 3 -g
+

Departure of Barbara Gibbes and appointment of Chris Davies (audited)
Lo grnouncen o T AL et ] RE=loil ot - T ot S ie S SN ey

IJUDUIBACD 31Di0dIon)

Executive Directors’ base satary {unaudited)

SIUSUIAIDILS J0IDUDULY

SRR D20 e Tamer 1t toe e Eeroar T et Tel ok
B Qg e TSR Tl ATUIRNL I Tz
Salary from Sclary fram
1October 1 Octoper
2022 202 Q
£000 £000 Incregse in salary -
’ T 754 £ -
e ] 5
- LT oz =3
. ' 450 2
e D 0T _ B
: 3
Q
=,
i =]
=]



ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Pension (n udited)

2022 2021
Contribution Pension Contrabution Pension
rate % of paid as cash rate % of pad as cash
base salary £000 bose salory £00G
donmey Triamrage 10 71 :

I~
r\

Soroars Dones 4 15

Annual performance bonus (audited)

Bonus pay out for year ended 30 September 2022
The Boord ack ot g oudast
HIRAST RS AFULS AR

for e veDt e
weith reqaro 1o ts 5

Performance measure

Lddprete s opeeat

Bonus awarded to each of the Executive Directors for year ended 30 September 2022

Base salary 2077 actua, bonus - gw o percentoge of 2027 base sawary 2022 bonus
Financial

£00C M U O~ target Maxrrgm objectives To'tul bonhus £000

125%  125%
125%




Long-term incentive awards (audited

-

T s e s

Performance conditions

= Lo gt enr, e LUt AL T

R

Lot e s

dr o A e 5
L= T it

Y% of gwaras
vesting

LTt yEET TTIeRE DETIENTIOS N7

as defines e

=0 by

Y0 ot owards
vesting

L
- C
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

oy

SDovie 7

EPS ot
30 Sep CAGR Maxiraurn Maxmum
Bose EPS 2022 i EPS target award
O [T 109.4 GA s 0
e s cer e BIF = 1o boom e LA 2 TEE mot e

O
I\

o the ROATLE S uttur o

TSR growth against FTSE 250 (excluding financial services and Investment Trusts)
TSR

at
30 Sep
2022 Madian Upper quartile  Maximum cward vested cward
2R 20.0% p.a. 1iEC IR c
PEL LW DT T it oyeites i lor o, Toreen SLonerTen L 2l St rTaa
Share price Share Share
at date price ot Proportion Shares Pertormance appreciction
of grart 3C Sep 2022 of award vested element eiement: Tata.
pence pence vesting number £000 £500 £000
dnmme T : S 100% 85,481 TeE
Eorronro : A 100% 19,374 a4l . L5

d equivalent payments (oudited)
T oo e , ool A RET T

T

Long-term incentive plan - awards granted in the yea
D T PR - . . - O AL L +

. - B

(_)utstunding share-based performance awards (audited)




Diploma PLC 2011 and 2020 Performance Share Plan (audited)

Shares Shares

Shares over which aver which

Fare value of over which awards awards

Ma-het  the gword ot Eng of awards held granted Vested Lapsed held at

price ot acie  oate of grant pe-formance at1Oct during during the during the 30 Sep

) N of oword® 1000 petod vesting gate 2020 the year period period 2022
Johnny Themson o
e 85'481 - - g
- - 74,804 <
- - 57,007 :

19,374 - -

- (8,601) 1720
- [13,656) 6,829

yioday 216a30a3g

Chair and Non-Execut o)
AL e E - o o
i N Total fees -3
2022 2021 24
£000 1000 Q
o
207 B
48 13 2
67 iﬁ: g
77 T 3
55 -z )
55 Ty
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ANNUAL REFORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Executive Directors’ interests (audited}
In options over shares

res,

ey T,

T ZCTICOsC

the vedr gre

Vested Options
Year of Options as at Exercised duting the unexercised as Exercise Earhest normal
vesting T Oct 2621 iroyeat year  at 30 Sep 2022 price* exercise dote
Rt oo vl 250 - - £1
Pler - - £1
ZE - £1
As at 30 Sep 2022 Az at 3G Sep 2021
Options with Options with
Ordinary  Options vested performance Ordimary Dptions vested perfarmance
shares but unexercised measures shares  butun crved

102,330
5,082

85,481

19,374

131,811 g
24,030 s B

’ -
LTI o

Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ interests in ordinary

shares (audited)

- teg Ditste Tt LTI I e LTt UL STTRE TTT SNSRI TSI 5 ed s i
- B Inrerest u'd\_'\_g_ry"sh_cves o
- - J— _ o As ot 30 Sep 2022 A5 ct 30 Sep 2021
T Lo 2,500 -
9,045
P 7,545
Lol T e 5,045
Cuotzoz- 2,045
s 640




Remuneration in context
Chief Executive poy ratio {unaudited)

[SEh v TR AIN ATaRE i T

=l

Rt I B LR T

258k percentile Mediorn 75th percentie
Methoa poy ratio Py ratio poy ratie

Ratie of base pay Totai pay
Basesalary  te CEC base pay and benefits

Aligning pay with performance (una
e s s the TUR e

Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over ten years

Qo0

600

TN,

150

o

30 Ser 2017 30 Sep 2012 3T he; 2074 3C Sep 2015 30 Sep 2016 52 Sep 2077 3 Ser 2018 30 Sep OIS 30 Sep 2GXC 30 Sep 2071 30 Sep 2077

o

— Dipioma PLO — FISE 200 texcluding Imvertrert Trusts |

b I3 o ER T e - T - T = Tty e
e - - A e P s 1 o
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Chief Executive Officer remuneration compared with annual growth in TSR {unaudited)

CEC aingle
figure of total
rarmareration

Name {£000)

Actua’ share
award vesting
agamnst
rraximurm
opportunity

Annuo! bonus
against
[as-T sl lan
opportunity

Jol'\"r-'ur-\y"li'homson 3,758

4

100%

100%

1Ty

e
24T o
Lo '
2022 2o Change
£m L £m
7 e ETALT S s 177.5 TR 4% =
Trun g oer o nnn 56.2 - 32

oyees (unaudited}

p=Re gy H

n remuneration of Directo

rs and empl
ar ot : -

B Base 5c\arz/‘ee change (%) Pension cnange ‘e o Texcble benebts cnange e
2022 20 2020 2022 2021 2020 2022 2027 20 2022
vs 2021 ve 2020 ve 2019 vs 2021 ve 2020 ve 2019 vs 2021 vy 2020 ve 2019 vs 2021
Executive Directors
R No B L _ Ne .

B S +3 change -l -18 - - +2 ~< chcnge +3 -0 [
_ _ hNo No I
oI TnLEs +7  change ~a +7  change coz +2 - - +7 =TI -z
Non-Executive Directors’
_ No
s L o n/a chonge M

No .

VR -69 change -5

X [R5=3 Mo
L oo +3 change change

“e T +6
_ No
B e o +3  change -7
Semm T 485 -~ =
Employees of the
Parent Company n/a - i n/a -z z n/a z 5 n/a : s

) - o i ’ ] No Ne Ne — T

Senior management team +7.5 - e +75 - -2 change change  chonge +22 - -2




Executrves and senior munogement belo the Board (unuudlted)

N

e1nd

Shares over

Share which Shares

Face vaue of over which awards over which

Market price  the award at Encof  awards held granted Vested Lopsed owards held

ol date of date of grent  performance  at 1 October during the during the during the at 30 Sep

award LUUY pencd piend year year year 2022

T a4 oo - 29,546 4,460 -

- - 9,612 39,860

PRI 2560 A hep PUT4 - 102,258 - 8,084 94,172
GOVERNANCE

Remuneration Committee

o]

Remunerotlon pnnCIpIes ond structure

Pl Tt dhe

rdependort Moo Srecut e D

Cinim s mnaeT pors, Anng T oD,

o

b
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Services from external advisors (unaudited

v

Other semvices
providec tc the

O3 3 GorerTL e

Aspointed by Serwices proviaed 1o the Committee Company Fees {£)
. Resvtone gtion odvioe T T
. PR

Annucl| General Meeting (unaudited)

Ty e S oo Thsndrenl art




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Shareholders

Shareholders
Incorporotlon cnd prmc:lpal actlv:ty

o]

MBIAIBA

asve

VE L

Restrnctnons on trcnsfer o‘f shores
LT c o ey 3 tige

yoday aibaypiyg

Percentoge of Percentoge I LR s L S L PR, PR I PN P
ordinary shares of areinary
{Seprember share capita’
2022F  {November 2022)
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DIRECTORS” REFPORT
CONTINUED

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4C

ey ey ; = 3 2OAT e Eo
jbela BTNV s SO R B 2Ol T Tl

Directors’ assessment of g

T

o3 Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the

financial statements
-

Non-financial information statement

THOED TTr T SO ThG e ey 30D e D er1nns
e oot - B et

Financial

Results and dividends
Tt te f

independent Auditors

T B
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Directors’ confirmations

Tre Doz tors cotoeior thot the Annud! Report & Accounts, tahon as
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e asiness rnoge 03
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JD Thomson
Chief Executive Officer

Registered office:

1G N o teron se S3ie
London
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Registered Number:
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Revenue o ' ' h ] CIE L0280
Joev Stize ~ {638.3)
Gross profit ) ' - T ' 374.5
T etr s _fime mte {25.9)
St N B A {204.3}
Operating profit - 144.3 !
Timneci exper 2L et 5 (14.8) -
Profit before tax 129.5 S
T enper e {34.1} o
Profit for the year 95.4 =

.

5

Law

76.1p I
75.9p it

AN S

Note "

S e o s T
Loy L.‘.;‘- R L L P 1 S To RIS L A AN A F - 456.9 L4 4
IR . . - — -

Adjusted operating profit ) ’ D 191.2 ;
T T e S AL e Tl S L L e . _{11.6) =
Kﬁjhsted_r;r:éﬁt before tax ' - o - 1796
Adjusted earnings per share = 107.5p SR

P e nmme A = [ e Tmmeon femges o ctoteom oot
. o Z -z .



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2022

2022 252

Note £m s

Profit for the year R o o o 95.4 B
Items that will not be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Stotement i '

' Tmtes demmes S e 10.6 A

TroTErE oo s T ne e e Lz (2.8) B

S ) 7.8 :

76.8 -

2 4.5 4

= s B = (0.4} L

s (1.1 o,

B ) 79.8 e

87.6 B

183.0 25

182.2
.98
183.0

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Share Share Transiotion Heasing Retained Shareheolders M.noriry Total

capital prem g FESEIVE reserve earnings equity Inleresls equity

L o Nete £ £m im £ [ £m frm £
At 1October 2020 - Foe P o Aha 527.0 T 530.7
s roedee o - - ol s e 60.8 mF 60.5
2 - - - - "= 1.8 - 1.8

5 - - - - o 1.0
- : e (0.5)

- N 0.9
< (0.9) (0.9)
T, mterest sred - - - - 0.7
O dee e Tl - - - - s (52.9) (53.2)
At 30 September 202 5 E hE e i . o 536.3 <7 541.0
Toin Ummiemensen v Tnv a Tl RO 182.2 TE 183.0
- lE 2.8 2.8
- L4 0.4 0.4
g - P {2.8) {2.8)
- - o - - = 25
Pl z - - {1.3)
1 — t

ol - - {1.9) (1.9}

RS TN
= 1.2 1.2
L el 3 Tl w3 R - : - - {0.3)
Doanens oo - - - R (56.2) {56.4)
At 30 September 2022 63  188.6 88.8 3.2 3751 6620 6.2 6682
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A LT 2O SETTENMEES Z02Z

2022 an
hote im fre

Non-current assets
! 9 372.3 2607
10 455.0 34 G

l\‘\.[}p“ﬁﬂl»"." wf*’uirlg tre gosels

LMher 1o oibog oects 10 4.1 4
Propest - g ot n el Y G 49.6 35 4
_eanes - Laht af nee Sesets 12 62.4 44 9
Retre~ent bene’ ' orsets 24 6.4

3 0.2 Ga

Deferred 1oy aneet:

950.0 4867

Current assets

Iventonies 4 217.4 135 8
Trode ot other vvoe vobiles 5 169.9 N7.E
e 5 - 173

7 4.7 24 &

Casr ang cosr g olonts

429.0 263 7

Current lickilities

i3 (30.5)

o (189.5)

& {11.8)

1% {19.0}

2 {12.7)

(263.5)

MNet current assets 165§

Total assets less current liabilities 1,115.5

Non-current liabilities

Rerve~et reme’  cbooatone 24 - {49
STERTVISURI E (340.1) eE 2
laose o 3 . 1z {56.4) 138 8
Crier ot s < (12.4) R
Leferres to oobudt e 2 (38.4) VR
547 3

Net assets o - . . 6e8.2

Equity o T
Share oo T 6.3 4]

Lo rreer s 188.6 58 &
e e e e 88.8 e

3.2 J/7
375 297
Total shareholders’ equity 662.0 HEIeIN
VApmt Lt ruts 20 6.2 b
Total equity - 668.2 g4t
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Operating profit T T e s e vy e
R TR N S TR U Te B R 46.9 s

T L AL T BN N 18.1 o

o el ETR S {28.7) e

Cash flow from operating activities o 180.6 PR

R AL PR T A S (15.0) o

Teni o {40.6) Ll
Net cash from operating activities _ 125.0 it

Cle et LT

MBIAIBAQ

Cash flow from investing activities
. (173.0} R
e {7Z.1) Kl
cad 13.7 .
o (14.3) .
(1.1) S
SIS I LOpaT. plattannesu et 9.9 A E

Net cash used irjriirjyejtigg activities (171.9) - —~ &

™

Cash flow from financing activities
LIRS o I RS e (56.2) L=
: Cretwnts - {0.2) T

Lol oy et reiageee -

.- (0.3)

yiodoy 21633056

. - L STe I S TR TS (2.8} -
= LT _E 154.8 PR

B ST AR S R ’ o {20.0) T4
o X TeTl L {10.9) -t

Net cgsﬁ;rom 'F;inqﬁcin:g actf;/it-i;e"s- 64 .4 TR

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cashec_;uw_ale_n;:s_ T 17.5 V.

SR 24.8 Iz
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Cash and cash equivalents at end of year a7

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES
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2022 200

Note £m Lo
Free cash flow . 120.4 [
L et s . 133.9

Free cash flow E.onversion % . 0%

UOI3DWIIOHU| JBYI0)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
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cde Science: Seole Cortriols Corperote Group

2 2022 ox 2022 20m 2022 2021 2022 2071
£m i £m im £m i 'zﬂj £m £r £m £

) 39.7 L7 57.0 £- z 104.0 Z (18.2} < 182.5
Sacsen 1.3 - 56 18 - | 87
Adjusted operating profit 41.0 457 62.6 &z 105.8 Za {18.2) Tl 191.2
e o e e g o e

I~

3 ael 1.5 t (16.6) - (30.5) el o _ {46
Operating profit 42.5 ine 456.0 % 75.3 s 3 (19.5) S 144.3

1N

Dnerntog zaeits 74.0 ol 207.5 A4 1.5 el B - -
Somma 106.2 =L 125.2 sl 140.9 Ve - -

Srsns Dle sriets 749 g 100.2 vLL 279.9 A - -
’ 2551 i: 4329 _ii: o -
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yoday o1bainag

4.7 ik
1.8

. Fs st Lmenfe aacts 6.4
Slormnsll nonet 7 8.6

Total assets 2551 432.9 632.3 Tz 587 .-
Do dteg o (41.7) - . (10333) (9265 = .

T

(38.4) Sf (38.4)
(31.4) 7 (31.4)
(32.8) i s (32.8)
(370.6) oo (370.6)
(473.2) it (710.8)
(414.5) 668.2
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Life Soiences Seals Controle Corporcte

2022 zom 2022 2z 2022 2021 2022 001 | 2022
£m irr £m i fm £ ) 7£rn ) irvj - £m

80 .7 37 HE 2.7 0.9 = 15.3
T 29 - 35 < 4.6 A 0.2 N n2

DA R AT IS AR )

Reﬁent;é_recognition
; e 176.4 315.6 o 492.8 e - : 984.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

3. Geographic segment analysis by origin

Adustec operating Trading capital

Revenue oroht VNDh-Curreﬁ_‘:G‘:SetS‘ employed B Copital expenditure
2022 260 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2027 2022 200
£m iy £m £ . Vim ijwj £fm - £ £m £
2097 27 2.0 e 1936 S 202.2 274 3.4 <=
166.7 ) 29.3 e 169.1 Iz 179.8 N 1.7 oE
561.0 129.5 i 519.2 “LE T 414.2 L s 8.9 &
75.4 fafalte 11.4 e 571 "B 62.3 i 1.3 -
1,012.8 e 9.2 isg " 939.0 5<% 1,058.5 o 15.3 <z
Tiot TLTTETT Snaete et ORI TETerceq Ty UTLETI SeT Tt 1 AET T TR tet SV RTT DASER S e et
4, Group employee costs
Average number of employees
2022 2021
: ) 423 '
1,174
981
Torowr ate B B -3
Number orfrernployees —Vavé’rcge 2,614
Number of employees — year end 2,909
Group employee costs, including key management
2022 262
£m L
154.8 e
13.3 e
6.6 £
2.8 &
177.5 Ins
2022 2021
£m frr
5.0 I
0.4
0.2 :
2.4 TR
8.0 s
2022 2020
£m e
Jim Seer s 2T oranes 0.5 <
See_ Tlers el 2.6 s
34 o=



5. Financial expense, net
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6. Tax expense 2
2022 2021 2
£m £m a.
Current tax o
oreotre profitdortre vear Loz com T 3
10.0 57 3

77777 o 308

40.8 S
(0.2} vy e
e S - o o o1 o
Total current tax 40.7 )
- pl S U S B
Deferred tax o
- e T P )
- = RS LS * ‘:4| [ - - ‘" i g
o telb o ogn (3.1} e 3
sl 35 N 2
Total deferred tax S __[6.6) s
Total tax on prefit for the year 341 -
3
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° - Fad
=
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year g
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2022 2621 L

£m £m
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b
6.7 0 2
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.
L 2.9 ' S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 2021 2022 200
pence per share  perice per share £m £m

15.0 T 18.7 R
- [:'—,": Vs o o . 30-1
451

- P T e e D et T
= o] SISO

8. Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

= e eTe s L i

Adjusted earnings per share

TR L e Gl P A L b B s e R PO

2022 20zt 2022 202
pence per share  pence per snare £m £

Profit before tax ’ 7 ' . 129.5 s
BT {34.1) 22"
S SR PO (0.7) .
Earnings for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company 76.1 e 94.7 sis

T T e T B e DUNIRTR T e ool B EPESE S

- Lo SR RS A S e

o 314 e 39.2 M

Adjusted earnings ' 107.5 B 1339 E

9. Goodwill

Lie Seiences Seare Controis Total
£m frr Lrr £m

R R C - - o R O 159.0
Lot o - L 117.6
o -z (3.8)
ot s reneine - . 4.7)
: - - e (7.4)
Ea oo . 260.7
: =T ceor Tl 81.0

e T o= 2 L 30.6
At 30 September 2022 el R O 372.3




Trade Total
names acquisition Other
Custorner Supplier brands and intangible intangible
reiationships reictionships 0C10BCses assets assets
£rn £m £m £m £m
[RERE 15905 et o 183.2 7.6
- - 1.4
Loal o ton Jus s c 404 306.8 0.2
L I (3.8) {0.9)
el & - (6.9) {0.4)
4l o - {16.8) {0.3)
S e T E 205 462.7 7.6
- - - - 1.0
S L 99.9 0.8
R - - - - (1.1)
Cevanigs adae e TSR . nE 1.0
At 30 September 2022 547.9 30.9 53.7 9.3
Amortisstion 0
- e o 96.0 4.6
R - £ 18.7 -
T h 14.4 0.7
e ° (3.6) (0.7}
. LZ - (5.4) {0.1)
- - (2.3) (0.3)
- - : o re 78 4.2
LT - A 4.0 -
Skt T e = L= 38.4 0.8
- - (0.4)
T N R B < 17.3 0.6
At 30 September 2022 - S 1401 24.6 12.8 w75 5.2
Net book value R -
At 30 Septermnber 2022 407.8 6.3 40.9 455.0 4.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

Do STInZ TE 3netI T T puter s3I e T T Ae T Dnats

11. Property, plant and equipment

curmert ood nouoos

Total
£m

Cost

LD A NG Lot

EOR T SN B R
LENIELI N
IR

X

fe

.

RS

63.3

4.9

2.8
(7.6)
(10.6)
(2.4

DS T
(87

o

69.4
14.3
6.7
(5.0)
12.3

At 30 September 2022

N s

97.7

Depreciation

-

TATT OO DD LEtTTeT Il

Loy

CouH

At 30 September 202

Net book value

At 30 September 2022
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12. Leases ~ right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Right-of-use gssets

Lanc b Fiant & Motor T & ootfice
bundings mechinery vehicles equprient Total
£ £ T im £rn
Cost
- < e T
- . o kN
= - <z Lh
at e SO st et o ~ s - o o
At 30 September 2022 o a 0.8 8.3 1.7
Depreciation
Lr e 2020 tE Z z
Z : 4 'g
are fe e e e . “ :';
e s AR e - 4 . _
At 30 September 2022 2.3 0.3 0 09
Net book value
At 30 September 2022 55.8 0.5 5.3 0.8
Ly AL hepterrre 1007 470 D4 o T
SoTvteTToomE oinat O zreme e L i 3. T P
Lease ligbilities
IR S N ook Sl R R STIE L ST SN SRR
2022
o B ~ . £m
- . 48.3
L 26.6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

13. Deferred tax

Thg e et o7 sefen

Excmar Qe noustrmente ] (1.4}

At 30'S-epternb¢;r - 7 - {38.2)

Assets viabilities Net

"~ 2022 200 2022 2073 T 2022 2071
£m Eem £m e £m £

0.1 n4 {5.8) =L (5.7) £a
- - (42.0) e o

s - . {1.0) (1.0)

3a o= {Q.1) s 3.0 4

1.4 o - . 1.4 1

—

N

I
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—
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oo o

2022 201
im im

EED R - T ' o 7 ' - 158.9 Ll
T - ) ) {7.2) ) i
. ' ) 1517 R

Do oo an 9.8 T
SEIILTTETTA T LIt ficve 8.4 Tz
169.9 o




- T et 1T T pELARTILSE I ot o 2022 2627
B - £m £
7.3 e
70.1 R
; 12.6 e
18.0 4
16.9 -
) 158.9
NI TN L R A S T TR e
2022 200
£m £m
g Tue ' - 124.9 S
S 26.8 i
S 7.2 Io
158.9 B

Lot roated noos fraowes

- 9 B E N M BT Terttooel ST DL S LT el LR T * 2022 oo
£m £

P—— " 241 -

JIdracs 50.2 ol
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

17. Cash and cash equivalents
2022

202

UK uss cs Eurc Other Total UK Uss cs Eute Other Totai
im £m £m £m fm  Em im £m £ £m irr fm
ook 15.2 71 2.3 7.8 6.4 18.8 25 s oE S £ Ja

Coepiite = 01 1.8 - 1.0 2.9 o ) -
15.2 7.2 4.1 7.8 7.4 a.7 2= =z s
The omoeT oo QOpol 0 3N I IET DT OO O D fereyt 2 otrates Zowzetoat

18. Financial instruments
e o N R B S =l

a) Credit risk

T o TEroe L1z o z e
Carrying a™iount
2022 201
o £m £
151.7 i
?.8 i
R - _ . a7 20
203.2 T

Impairment of financial assets
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c) Currency risk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

J R A B -
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2022 Pl
fm Em

10.3 o1
2.6 Z4
1.7 o
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d) Interest rate risk
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f) Capital management risk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

20. Minority interests

At 30 September 2022

[

o5

=

- -

[

P Selalie et [<iiwts [IEFR Su oA LS -

21. Acquisitions and disposals of businesses
Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group Limited

[

Other ccquisitions

o e - T T S e TR L E L Y Pa— -+
b T - - D - - - - ol
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REG Accuscience Others Total

Beok valae Foir value Book vaiue Fair value Book value Far value Book value Fair value

im £ i £m im £m £m £m
P 733 - - 98.2
o A - S - . {0.7) (18.5)

L I T 0o Z. T 6.7 6.7

24 z £ > 28.2 26.1

a4 4 5E - T LE S 22.7 22,3

Trode ood Zimer Dovanies L SRS T T I T A (28.9) (29.7)
Net assets acquired 14.6 491 3.0 3.0 10.4 25.0 28.0 105.1
SIS O - IR - o - - - 80.6
ot - (2.5)

EE i I iz 178.3
{6.1)

2

1.0

183.2

n s ey .

Acquisitions revenue and adjusted operating profit

Eas I A Nl T IR Tl M SRSt B R e i e T L ARl T B S G RE L
” Pro forme
Pre farme Opercuing operating
Revenue Ad, - revenue wrofit Ady proft’
£rm L Lo f£rm £m
[ s iz e 1% T
R0 LT il 4.7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

22, Reconciliation of operating profit to cash flow from operating activities

2022 2022 2521 2021
£Em £m £m £m
E.)perctin_g profit - - T 1443 ) Z
oo sTion reates 20T ofner TG 2 T 456.9 L4
AdJusted operctmg profit i - T191.2 LT
Rt S B e O I et B LIPS R
239 e
28 2
Yoo s 4 Tieect {0.6) c =
{1.6) -
(6.5) 47
- ~ 041 z
Non-cash items and other o 7 T 181
Operctlng coshwﬁowr before aﬁes in wor-lz_lna-cuprtcﬁ o o o 2093 - 7
ForEnre T N onto e (35.6) EE
= {10.6) .
£ o 17.5 T
Increase in working capital (28.7) R
Cash flow from operating activities 180.6 AL S
23 (Net debt)/cush ‘Funds
e e ‘ o e AT i Exchonge  Other non-cask
10ct 2621 Toer Ao movements mMoverienty 30 Sep 2022
B im B 7 £ o i B Eer B £m
T ome o tmem edn s N T e a7
S s T e N e (370.46)
Net debt B T T e EE & T (328.9)
Exchonge  Other nan-cosh
1 Oct 2020 Zosk fon “noverments maoverents 30 Sep 200
i e S im L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

a) Pension surplus / (deficit) included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2022 2029
pom ;

(Y]

-

L+

o
"

R e B B GRS s L R ) ] ) o ) o o (25.5} S :
Pension scheme net asset / (deficit) 6.4 2.

soer L E ey of sToine O Lt eE 3T L SN0 T DERSNE L7 T ot LLn D T e
2022 2021
£m £m
(0.8) s
- ) B 0.8 z
et ST TG Ewretun sl Lt T -

Amounts cha rééd to the Consolidated Income Statement B -

¢) Amaunts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

T T (0.7)
Actuarial gain credited in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 8.5 <

T T L T B R L L T st LK DT NS SO RS o T N S S A R P R
T -~

2022 20
£fm im

e T L SR I S 2.7 -
Tomtemn R (0.6) £

B T B B L L L LT G S Ll R T =T (8.5}

{Asset) / deficit os at 30 September {6.4) -

e) Analysis of movements in the present value of the Scheme liabilities
2022 252
£m Err

e 41.0 E
Tt Tt R ol 0.7 -
TIIItTT onr e 0.8 o
R L S S L (15.7) oz
[ R ] {1.3) o -

A1 30 September ' ' 25.5 s




t) Analysis of movernents in the present value of the Scheme assets
2022 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

Effect of the Scheme on th

oo

Ty E

The Kubo Pension Scheme (the Kubo Scheme)
e [ e )

o s tne Kune Scher s ) B (13.5) =
net deficit - T
T TU e (S et mmr e e mmen LTLE e e

b) Amounts charged to the Consolidated Income Statement

[
RLNE T S 2

Amount cht;rged to operating profit in the Consolidated Income Statement

c) Analysis of movermnent in the pension deficit

PEIREIERSe I {0.1) L
At 30 September - -

d} Amounts recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

TOOnTTLINT gTT oenton Y LT e Tote s Rratesmar o T e g m T2 D] P i

- 2022 207
_____ — _ tm i
(1.3} iE

4.2
(0.4} s
R , _ ) _ _(0.4) -
Actuarial gain credited in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 21 P

Principal actuarial assumptions for the Kubo Scheme at balance sheet dates

2022 2021

N

0% oF
1.0% Tl
2.3% LI
o 1.0% JIt.

BVG2020 oL Il

Sensitivities
R T T R T TR s
epact on per sior habimes
Estimigred Ectimated
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Facta o frr
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Effect of the Kubo Scheme on the Group's future cash Hows

25. Auditors’ remunerctlon

N e e T

Tiy TN

2022
£m

2021

i Il . .
! Cwete DIt te 0o R
Socrarerent Cpmeme e sontedt ans subact ot o L 2ic

26. Exchange rates

- Tlae S LI

4Average

2022 20 2022

1.27 TR 1.12
i: SRR 1.63 . 1.53
LA 1.18 T 1.14
KEEPEA L 1.20 Pt 110
1.7¢9 i 1.74

TCoUne TRELe g

oot ine

2022
Note £m

1,012.8
144.3
: - el : : 46.9
Adjusted operating profit ] o e 9.2

Adjusted operating margin L 18.9%

27 2 Ad;usted proﬁt before tax

Adjusted proﬁt before tax - - S ) 179.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED

27.3 Adjusted earnings per share

L Z ]

2022 2021 2022 200
_bence per share pence pershare fm £m
Profit before tax 7 - 129.5 “E
fov oz e {34.1) IO
R T (0.7} 3
Earnings for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company 761 S 94.7 onE
LeGU st e STEC DU I DRQrget 372 01303 ToN teaies Fratre thar e
et 5P 1o 31.4 2w 39.2 el
Adjusted earnings ) 107.5 &2 133.9 102

T vor oo e

27.4 Free cash flow and free cash fAow conversicn

oL

177.6
i 6.5
(13.7)
7.1
(131.3)

[

Free cash flow

120.4

Adjusted earnings

133.9

Free cash How conversion

0%




27.5 Trading capital empioyed and ROATCE

2022 2t
£m £m

Net assets o 668.2 Ao
38.2 e
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

1.7 Foreign currencies 1.8 Taxation
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

) Trade recewobles and loss clloquce f) Borrowmgs

Lensan

b) Trade paycbies
e

trrette me s b tre

1.16 Cther Itabrlrttes

Lt




1.19 Reiated parties

SrE o

1.20 Accounting standards, interpretations and amendments
to published standards not yet effective
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITICN

LS AT BAC SERTEMBER D(G22

2022 2021
Nate £m crr

Fixed ossets

investrents S 297.2 2572
Debtors: amounts failing due within one year )

femgnts Gwed m_biaﬁur, -_J-’\CJGTT(.Kiﬁgi ’ 7 35.8
Crediiors.z-;}pouﬁ#_g fclﬂ%r_\-é due within one year

Lrneonts Gwed e Grouy unnertakings - (34 7.

Net ossets T 333.0 275

Capitaland reserves T -

Caled up ehare conta < 6.3 4%

Stare prertium 188.6 158 &

Profit and Joss account 138.1 &7 L
- ' 0 333.0 7678
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Chief Financial Officer

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR T+F YEAR ENDFD 20 SEPTEMBER 2072
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copite boeT U earnings equity

hote fre £ im £m
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o ToorrrrenEasaes e pme = - 285 125.5
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

a) Accounting policies
a.l) Basis of accounting
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

d) investments

Gemeoe Rec o ety

At 30 September 297.2 2Ll

S BT ML |
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e) Called up share capital
2022 2021 2022 202
Num_ber Numiber £m £

T
S LATS RO R g BN It BT RMrel T bl

At 30 September 124,616,170 PR 6.3 .

f) Dividends
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC
CONTINUED

Our audit approach

Overview
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

How we tailored the audit scope
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED :

Corporate governance statement
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
ReSpOhSIblh‘tIES of the dlrectors for the ﬁnonc;al statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Compames Act 2006 exception reportsng
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Announcements (provisional dates) Shareholders’ enquiries
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FIVE YEAR RECORD

2022 2023 2020 2015
Yeor ended 30 Septemiper £m £rn £ £im
Revenwe T T o T R D T T g
Adjusted operating profit S Wz eE, ‘ ERR e
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Capital structure
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